
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2020 - 7:00 PM
ORION TOWNSHIP HALL

2525 JOSLYN RD.
LAKE ORION, MICHIGAN 48360

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE
3. RECOGNITION

A. Firefighter of the Year
B. Citizen of the Month

4. APPROVAL OF BILLS
5. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
7. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Minutes - Regular Meeting, February 3, 2020
B. Tuition Reimbursement Request
C. Schedule Board Workshop March 2, 2020 6:00 PM (Location Fire Station 3)
D. Lease Vehicle - Building Department
E. Purchase Two Vehicles - Public Service Department
F. Purchase CAT Brush Hog- Parks & Recreation
G. Polly Ann Trail Interlocal and By-Law Revisions
H. Interlocal Sewer Agreement
I. East Clarkston Pathway Inspection Services
J. Solicitation Request-  VFW Post 334 – Buddy Poppy Fundraiser
K. Set Election Inspector Pay
L. ADDED Solicitation Request - Clean Water Action

8. PENDING
A. Second Reading - Update Tobacco, Alternative Nicotine Products, and Vapor Products 
Ordinance
B. Petty Cash Account - Fire Department 
C. Schedule Joint Meeting

9. REPORTS 
A. Police/Fire Reports
B. SCS Economic Development Activities in 2019
C. Preliminary Financials for December and January

10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT
11. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION - DISCUSS ATTORNEY OPINION AND PENDING LITIGATION
12. ADJOURNMENT                                                                              

In the spirit of compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals with a disability should feel free to 
contact Penny S. Shults, Clerk, at (248) 391-0304, ext. 4001, at least seventy-two hours in advance of the meeting to 
request accommodations.

2

3
6
8
9
12
21
23
59
62
70
72
73

79

84
87

88

93

1



2/18/2020

INVOICES
Total Checks

Non Board Bills 2/4/2020 $67,212.85

Board Bills 2/18/2020 $1,641,632.50

Total Invoices $1,708,845.35

void #1124 Replacement check ($3,053.13)

Total Invoice Disbursements $1,705,792.22

PAYROLL

Total Gross

Regular Pay 2/5/2020 $201,385.69

Total Payroll Disbursements $201,385.69

Grand Total Disbursements $1,907,177.91

Due to the conversion to the Pooled Cash Fund, total disbursements now include

all refunds from deposits, bonds & escrow items.

             Prepared by Tandem Graves, AP/PA Coordinator

2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2020 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER.  The Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees held a regular meeting 

on Monday, February 3, 2020 at the Orion Township Hall, 2525 Joslyn Road, Lake Orion, 

Michigan.  Supervisor Barnett called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chris Barnett, Penny Shults, Donni Steele, Mike Flood, 

Brian Birney, Julia Dalrymple & John Steimel  

 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: 

George Hanley Dan Dewey  Matt Schwanitz  Nancy Stardish 

Char Follis  Paul Junge  Dominic Moceri  Anna Mangowron 

Lori Lynch  Rebecca Andrus Rebecca Leichardt  Kevin Church 

Gary Roberts  Eileen Nolton  Neal Porter   Judy Haffner 

Dan Haffner  Don Hickmott 

2.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Char Follis, Kensington Church member gave the 

Invocation.  All rose for the Pledge of Allegiance led by Cub Scout Pack 512. 

 

3. INVITATION- ONTV 10th Annual Food Drive.  ONTV invited everyone to come to the 

10th Annual Food Drive and support FISH Food Pantry.   

 

4. CITIZEN OF THE MONTH.  The Citizen of the Month will be awarded at a future meeting.    

 

5. CITIZEN RECOGNITION.   

A.  Recognized Abryannah Chanthana as the 2020 Census coloring contest winner.   

 

B.  Honored Firefighters Personnel that were recognized by the OCMCA for an out of hospital 

cardiac arrest for the performance of high-quality CPR and good patient outcome were: 

EMS Coordinator Chris LaGerould, Capt. Mitch Tarrance, Lt. Chris Hagan, Lt. Kurt Wagenaar, 

and Firefighters Anthony Shaffer, Alan Adorjan, and Derek Welch.  

  

6.  APPROVAL OF BILLS.  Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Trustee Birney to 

authorize payment of bills in the amount of $666,839.46 and payrolls in the amount of 

$207,808.16, for a total disbursement of funds in the amount of $874,647.62, as presented. 

AYES: Barnett, Birney, Dalrymple, Flood, Steimel, Shults, Steele     ABSENT:  None   NAYS: 

None      MOTION CARRIED 

 

7.  BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT.  Public comment was heard. 

 

8.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA.  Supervisor Barnett removed 9.B. Schedule Joint Meeting.   

 

Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Trustee Dalrymple to approve the agenda, as amended.  

MOTION CARRIED   

 

3



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2020 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

9.  CONSENT AGENDA. 

 

A. Minutes - Regular Meeting, January 21, 2020.  Approve, as presented 

 

B. Schedule Joint Meeting.  This item was removed. 

 

C. Budget Adjustment - General Activities.  Direct the Accounting Controller to make the 

necessary budget adjustments as outlined for accounts 101-000-674.000 and 101-248-806.000.   

 

D. Treasurer's Quarterly Report.  Receive and file the report, as amended.   

 

E. Environmental Resource Committee Appointment.   Appoint Debbie Leveski to the 

Environmental Resources Committee to fill the vacant voting member position for a term 

expiring 12-31-22. 

 

F. Purchase Portable Light Tower - Parks & Recreation.   Authorize the purchase of a 

Generac MLTS-2 Portable Light Tower, at a cost not to exceed $9,500 (including freight). 

 

Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Clerk Shults to approve the Consent Agenda, as amended.  

AYES: Steele, Birney, Dalrymple, Flood, Barnett, Steimel, Shults        ABSENT:  None    

NAYS: None      MOTION CARRIED 

 

10. PENDING BUSINESS. 

 

A. Second Reading - PC-2019-47 Lavender Ridge PUD Agreement.   Moved by Clerk Shults, 

seconded by Trustee Flood to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and 

conditionally approved the second reading on February 3, 2020 for PC-2019-47, Lavender Ridge 

Final PUD Rezone/Map Amendment and Agreement, a request to rezone a vacant parcel at the 

southeast corner of Silverbell and Squirrel Roads (Sidwell #09-36-226-001) from Suburban 

Farms (SF) to Planned Unit Development (PUD) for plans date stamped received November 26, 

2019 with the conditions listed by the Planning Commission at their December 18, 2019 

meeting, and authorize the Township Supervisor and Township Clerk to sign the PUD 

Agreement on behalf of the Township after it is approved by the Township Attorney. This 

approval is based on the reasons listed in the recommendation of conditional approval from the 

Planning Commission on December 18, 2019 and for the reasons discussed and stated by the 

members of the Board of Trustees.   

AYES:  Birney, Dalrymple, Flood, Barnett, Steimel, Shults, Steele        ABSENT:  None    

NAYS: None      MOTION CARRIED 

 

B. PC-2019-48 Cottages at Gregory Concept and Eligibility PUD.  

Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Birney to conditionally approve PC-2019-48, 

Cottages at Gregory Meadows Planned Unit Development (PUD), located at 3537 and 3595 

Gregory Rd. (Sidwell #09-31-200-006 and 09-31-200-008) for plans date stamped received 

12/19/19 for the reasons given by the Planning Commission in their motion to recommend 

conditional approval on January 15, 2020 and conditioned upon an acceptable PUD Agreement  

4



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2020 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

prepared by the Township Attorney to be approved by the Board of Trustees with the  

understanding Pulte will design and build a safety path in front of their development east to 

Baldwin and with the understanding Orion Township will be responsible for securing easements.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The Board was recessed from 8:48 p.m. to 9:03 p.m. to afford Mr. Don Hickmott and Lavender 

Ridge developer to discuss safety path options.  

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Steimel to reconvene the regular meeting.        

MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION WITHDRAWN for PC-2019-48 Cottages at Gregory Concept and Eligibility PUD.  

 

Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Flood to conditionally approve PC-2019-48, 

Cottages at Gregory Meadows Planned Unit Development (PUD), located at 3537 and 3595 

Gregory Rd. (Sidwell #09-31-200-006 and 09-31-200-008) for plans date stamped received 

12/19/19 for the reasons given by the Planning Commission in their motion to recommend 

conditional approval on January 15, 2020 and conditioned upon an acceptable PUD Agreement 

prepared by the Township Attorney to be approved by the Board of Trustees with the 

understanding Pulte will design and build a safety path in front of their development east to 

Baldwin and with the understanding Orion Township will be responsible for securing easements 

and Pulte will design and build a safety path from their west property line to Gregory Meadows 

with the understanding Orion Township will be responsible for obtaining easements.  

AYES: Birney, Dalrymple, Flood, Barnett, Shults, Steele        ABSENT:  None    

NAYS: Steimel      MOTION CARRIED 

 

11.  REPORTS. 

A. Police/Fire Reports.  Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Trustee Birney to receive and 

file the reports.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B. Construction Projects Update.  Moved by Barnett, seconded by Trustee Birney to receive 

and file the verbal report.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

12.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS. Board member comments were heard. 

 

13.  ADJOURNMENT.  Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Clerk Shults to adjourn. 

MOTION CARRIED.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:34 p.m. 

 
________________________________ 

      Penny S. Shults, Clerk 

Transcription: P. Shults 

                         _____________________________ 

         Chris Barnett, Supervisor 

     Charter Township of Orion  

5



    Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Township Board of Trustees 

From: Chris Barnett, Supervisor 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 11, 2020 

Subject: Tuition Reimbursement Request – Patrick Ross 

 Pending X Consent 

 
REQUEST 

 
Attached is a request from Patrick Ross, Park Maintenance Worker, for reimbursement of tuition for an 
Automotive Fundamentals course at Oakland Community College. The course began January 13, 2020, and 
concludes on May 4, 2020. The estimated cost is $478.00. 
 
The Parks & Recreation Director and I are recommending that the Township Board approve his tuition 
reimbursement request.  
 
Per the Tuition Reimbursement Policy (attached), “Approved reimbursement payments will be processed after 
the employee completes twelve (12) months of continuous employment with Orion Township, following 
successful course completion.” Reimbursement would not be made until after May 4, 2021. 

 
PROCESS 
 
 

 
BUDGET -   Financial Item?   X Yes  No If yes, fill out information below: 

Fund Name Account No. Description Budget Amount Cost 
Remaining 
Budget 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 
 
Authorize Patrick Ross to take the Automotive Fundamentals course and approve reimbursement in an amount 
not to exceed $478.00, contingent upon all requirements as listed in the Tuition Reimbursement Policy. 
 

 
attachment 

6



7



    Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Township Board 

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 13, 2020 

Subject: Schedule Board Workshop 

 Pending X Consent 

I am requesting that we convene the Township Board for a Board Workshop on March 2, 2020, 6:00 p.m., at 
Fire Station #3. We will see the completed station as well as hear an update from the Fire Department. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
REQUEST: 

REASON: 

 
PROCESS: 

 
 
BUDGET:  Financial Item?    Yes X No If yes, fill out information below: 

Fund Name Account No. Description Budget Amount Cost Remaining Budget 
      

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion): 

Schedule a Board Workshop for March 2, 2020, 6:00 p.m., at Fire Station #3. 

8



    

V3.12-10-19 

Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Chris Barnett, Supervisor 

From: David Goodloe, Building Official 

Meeting Date: 2/18/2020 

Memo Date: 2/11/2020 

Subject: Lease Inspector Vehicle 

  

 
 
REQUEST    

Lease vehicle for Building Department 
 
REASON    

Inspector vehicle 
 
PROCESS  

Sign lease with Milosch Dodge Jeep Ram 
 

BUDGET 

If yes, fill out information below: 
 
 Financial Item? ☒  Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Expected Invoice Date: 2/18/2020  Reviewed by Budget Director? ☒ 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 

 
To approve Vehicle lease in the amount of $9,900. 
 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

Fund Name Account No. Description 
Budget 
Amount Cost 

Remaining 
Budget 

Vehicle Lease 101-371-935.001 Lease $30,000 $9,900 $7,316.76 

9



10



11



    

V3.12-10-19 

Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Chris Barnett, Supervisor 

From: Jeff Stout, Director of Public Services 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 12, 2020 

Subject: DPS Vehicle Purchase Agenda Memo 

 
 
REQUEST : Township Board approval to purchase the following vehicles for the Department of Public 
Services. 
                     2020 GMC Sierra 3500HD with plow pkg. 
                     2020 GMC Sierra 3500 HD Crane Truck Pkg. 
                      
 
 
REASON : The Department of Public Services has been rotating service vehicles every five years. This is 
done to alleviate the high maintenance costs associated with vehicles over 100,000 miles, it also provides 
us with a decent trade in allowance. 

 
 
PROCESS : The quotations prepared for us by Todd Wenzel GMC have the current pricing benefits that are 
a part of the Oakland County purchasing program. We have for years been keeping with the GMC brand 
due to it’s record of low maintenance, tough use and good resale. 
 
 

BUDGET : Yes 

If yes, fill out information below: 
 
 Financial Item? ☒  Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Expected Invoice Date: 4/1/2020  Reviewed by Budget Director? ☒ 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 

 
Township Board approval to authorize the Director of Public Services to purchase two – 2020 GMC 3500 HD 
vehicles from Todd Wenzel GMC in the amount totaling 61,841.00. 
 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

Fund Name Account No. Description 
Budget 
Amount Cost 

Remaining 
Budget 

Water and Sewer 592-248-978 Cap Out Veh 75,000.00 61,841.00  

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



    

V3.12-10-19 

Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Chris Barnett, Supervisor 

From: Jeff Stout, Director of Public Services 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 12, 2020 

Subject: DPS Vehicle Purchase Agenda Memo 

 
 
REQUEST : Township Board approval to purchase the following vehicles for the Department of Public 
Services. 
                     2020 GMC Sierra 3500HD with plow pkg. 
                     2020 GMC Sierra 3500 HD Crane Truck Pkg. 
                      
 
 
REASON : The Department of Public Services has been rotating service vehicles every five years. This is 
done to alleviate the high maintenance costs associated with vehicles over 100,000 miles, it also provides 
us with a decent trade in allowance. 

 
 
PROCESS : The quotations prepared for us by Todd Wenzel GMC have the current pricing benefits that are 
a part of the Oakland County purchasing program. We have for years been keeping with the GMC brand 
due to it’s record of low maintenance, tough use and good resale. 
 
 

BUDGET : Yes 

If yes, fill out information below: 
 
 Financial Item? ☒  Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Expected Invoice Date: 4/1/2020  Reviewed by Budget Director? ☒ 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 

 
Township Board approval to authorize the Director of Public Services to purchase two – 2020 GMC 3500 HD 
vehicles from Todd Wenzel GMC in the amount totaling 65,273.00. 
 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

Fund Name Account No. Description 
Budget 
Amount Cost 

Remaining 
Budget 

Water and Sewer 592-248-978 Cap Out Veh 75,000.00 65,273.00  

20



    

V3.12-10-19 

Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Orion Township Board of Trustees 

From: Aaron Whatley, Parks & Recreation Director 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 10, 2020 

Subject: Authorize Purchase of Parks & Recreation Equipment - Brush Hog & Auger Drive 

 
 
REQUEST 

Authorize the purchase of a Cat BR172 Brush Hog and A19 Auger Drive with accessories, at a total cost of 
$10,495.00 – see attached quote for details.    
 
REASON 

The brush hog, auger drive and accessories are being purchased to replace existing aging equipment. The 
supplier is a member of the MiDeal Bid Program through the State of Michigan.   
 
PROCESS 

Funds for this item have been budgeted in the 2020 budget (Capital Outlay – Equipment), $14,000 of which 
has been earmarked for these items.   
 

BUDGET 

If yes, fill out information below: 
 
 Financial Item? ☒  Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Expected Invoice Date:  3/1/2020 Net 30  Reviewed by Budget Director? ☒ 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 

 
Board action would be to authorize the purchase of a Cat BR172 Brush Hog, A19 Auger Drive & accessories at 
a cost not to exceed $10,495.00.   
 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

Fund Name Account No. 

Original 
Amount 

Budgeted for 
G/L 

Cost of 
Item/Project 

Remaining 
Budget after cost 
of item/project 

Capital Outlay – Equipment 208-751-977 $14,000.00 $10,495.00 $3,505.00 

21



 

 

David Raftery 
Orion Township 
 
David, 
Thank you so much for the opportunity to quote you on your upcoming equipment requirements. I am pleased to 
offer the following equipment quote: 
 
Equipment:      Purchase  Price 
Cat BR172      $5845.00    
72” Brush Hog  

 
A19 Auger Drive     $2680.00 
9” Standard Auger Bit     $420 
9” Rock Head      $300  
30” Industrial Auger bit    $1250 
 
Freight (Per Delivery, if necessary)   $250.00 
 
Lead time – All of the above are either already in stock or in stock at factory. Approximately 2 weeks. 
 

Please review the information and call me with any questions. Thank you for this opportunity to do business with 
you!  
 
CUSTOMER SIGNATURE x_______________________________________     DATE:____________________ 
 
 

 
Sincerely, 

Shawn M. Miller 
MacAllister Cat Rental Store 

Industrial Account Representative 
Mobile: (248) 343-2429 
Office:  (248) 714-8300 
Fax:      (866) 746-0858 

E-mail: shawnmiller@MacAllister.com 

 

22



    

V3.12-10-19 

Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Donni Steele & Aaron Whatley -- PATMC Representatives 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 11, 2020 

Subject: Polly Ann Trailway Management Council Interlocal and Bylaw agreement changes 

 

REQUEST 
To review and approve PATMC changes to the Interlocal Agreement and the Bylaws for the Interlocal 
Agreement. Also attached are the 2019 PATMC Budget Adjustments, 2020 Budget and the Budget Formula 
increases thru 2022. 
REASON 

The PATMC has been working on the renewal of their master plan. To ensure the master plan is acceptable to 
obtain grants, changes were made to the Interlocal Agreement and Bylaws; specifically, the Dissolution in the 
Interlocal agreement, Section 7- A. The PATMC has reviewed and amended the Interlocal Agreement which 
includes Addison, Orion and Oxford Township and Leonard and Oxford Villages. The Council is requesting 
unanimous approval from the five (5) municipalities. 
Also, please note the Budget Formula increases for the next 4 years. 
 
PROCESS 
 

Once the Interlocal Agreement are approved by all Municipalities, the last municipality to approve the 
Interlocal Agreement will be the approval date to be inserted in the amended Bylaws. PATMC will circulate one 
set of documents for original signatures once they are approved by the 5 municipalities. Final signed documents 
will then be provided to Orion. 
BUDGET 

If yes, fill out information below: 
 
 Financial Item? ☒  Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Expected Invoice Date: 1/1/2021  Reviewed by Budget Director? ☒ 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 
Move to approve the Interlocal Agreement and the Bylaws for the Interlocal Agreement between the Townships 
of Orion, Oxford, and Addison, and the Villages of Oxford and Leonard, and the Polly Ann Trailway 
Management Council, Inc. as presented; and authorize Supervisor and Clerk to sign the Interlocal Agreement 
on behalf of the Charter Township of Orion. 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

Fund Name Account No. Description 
Budget 
Amount Cost 

Remaining 
Budget 

      

23



 
 

24



Red Lined Draft Copy April 11, 2019 

 

1 
 

BYLAWS 

OF 

POLLY ANN TRAILWAY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL, INC. 

  

  

ARTICLE I 

  

Name 

  

          Section 1.    Name of the Organization.   The name of tile 

Organization shall be the Polly Ann Trailway Management Council, Inc. 

(the “Organization”). 

  

ARTICLE II 

  

Purposes and Activities 

  

              Section 1.    Purpose of the Organization. 

  

A. The Organization is established for public and charitable 
purposes as described in Section 501 (C) (3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (the Code); namely to develop and 
maintain a recreational trail in Oakland County, Michigan 
between Indianwood Road in Orion Township and 
Boardman Road in Addison Township, utilizing the 
abandoned G.T.W. railroad right-of-way, (the “Polly Ann 
Trail). 

 

  B.          To enter into any activity, do any and all acts consistent 

with and complementary to operating the Polly Ann Trail and in 

furtherance of the purposes set forth herein. 

  

             Section 2.        Restrictions on Activities. 

  

  A.           The Organization will at all times be conducted as an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code. The Organization 
will not carry on any activities which are not permitted to be carried on by 
(a) a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) 
of the Code, (b) a corporation eligible to receive tax deductible 
contributions under Section 170(c) and Section 2055, Section 2522 or 
Section 2106 of the Code.  
  

25



Red Lined Draft Copy April 11, 2019 

 

2 
 

  B.         No part of the assets or net earnings of the Organization 
may inure to the benefit of or be distributable to its Council members, 
officers, or other private persons; provided, however, that the Organization 
is authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for 
services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance 
of its charitable purposes. 
  

  C.          No substantial part of the activities of the Organization will 
be the carrying on of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence 
legislation. The Organization will not participate or intervene in any 
political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public 
office and will not publish or distribute statements relating to political 
campaigns. 
  

ARTICLE III 

  

Council 

  

            Section 1.     Governance. The property, business and affairs of the 
Organization will be managed by a governing council (the “Council”). 
  

            Section 2.     Powers and Duties of the Council. 

  

  A.          The Council will have all powers and duties as described 

in Section 5, subsection A of the Interlocal Agreement to Establish the 

Polly Ann Trailway Management Council, Inc. by and among the 

Townships of Orion, Oxford and Addison and the Villages of Oxford and 

Leonard dated September 19, 1997 as amended by the “First Amendment 

to Interlocal Agreement” dated  ________, 199__ , both of which are 

attached hereto as Attachment A (the Agreement), subject to the 

limitations set forth in Section 5, Subsection D of the Agreement. 

  

  

  B.         The Council may establish committees as the Council 
deems appropriate. The committees will have the authority as delegated 
to them by the Council. 
  

            Section 3.     Number, Selection and Term of Office. The number, 

selection and term of office of Council members will be as described in 

Section 3, subsection A of the Agreement. 

  

26



Red Lined Draft Copy April 11, 2019 

 

3 
 

             Section 4.    Meetings. Council meetings will be held as provided 
in Section 4, subsection A of the Agreement. 
  

             Section 5.    Special Meetings. Special meetings will be held as 

provided in Section 4, subsection A of the Agreement. 

  

             Section 6.    Notice of Meetings. Notice of all regular meetings of 
the Council will be given as provided in Section 4, subsection B of the 
Agreement. Notice of a regular meeting need not state the purpose or 
purposes of the meeting nor the business to be transacted at the meeting. 
Written notice of all special meetings will be given not less than two days 
before the special meeting. Notice of a special meeting must state the 
purpose or purposes of the meeting. 
  

Attendance of a Council member at a meeting constitutes a waiver 
of notice of the meeting, except where the Council member attends the 
meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any 
business because the meeting was not lawfully called or convened. 
  

            Section 7.     Conduct at Meetings. The meetings of the Council will 
be conducted as provided in Section 3, subsection B (4) of the Agreement. 
  

            Section 8.     Quorum and Voting. The quorum and voting 
requirements of the Council will be as provided in Section 4, subsection C 
of the Agreement. 
  

            Section 9.     Resignation, Removal and Vacancies. A Council 
member may resign by written notice to the Organization. The resignation 
will be effective upon its receipt by the Organization or a subsequent time 
as set forth in the notice of resignation. A Council member may be 
removed as provided in Section 3, subsection A of the Agreement. A 
Council member may also be removed, either with or without cause, by 
the affirmative vote of a majority of the Council members then in office. 
  

If a vacancy has occurred among the members of the Council, the 
vacancy will be filled as provided in Section 3, subsection A of the 
Agreement. 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



Red Lined Draft Copy April 11, 2019 

 

4 
 

ARTICLE IV 

  

Officers 

  

            Section 1.     Election, Appointment and Length of Service. The 
election or appointment of officers and the length of Service of the officers 
will be as provided in Section 3, subsection B of the Agreement. 
  

            Section 2.     The Chairperson/President. The Chairperson of the 
Council will also be President of the Organization and will have general 
and active management of the activities of the Organization. The 
President will see that all orders and resolutions of the Council are carried 
into effect. The President will execute all authorized conveyances, 
contracts or other obligations in the name of the Organization except 
where required by law to be otherwise signed and executed and except 
where the signing and execution is expressly delegated by the Council 
members to some other person. The President will preside at meetings of 
the Council. 
  

             Section 3.     The Vice Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson 

will, in the absence of the Chairperson, exercise all powers normally 

vested in the Chairperson and will perform any other duties prescribed by 

the Council or the Chairperson. In his or her absence, the Council 

members present at the meeting will designate another presiding officer. 

  

            Section 4.     The Secretary. In addition to the duties set forth in 
Section 3, subsection B of the Agreement, the Secretary will attend all 
meetings of the Council and record the minutes of all proceedings in a 
book to be kept for that purpose. The Secretary will perform any other 
duties prescribed by the Council. 
  

            Section 5.     The Treasurer. In addition to the duties set forth in 
Section 3, subsection B of the Agreement, the Treasurer wilt oversee the 
financial activities of the Organization. The Treasurer will perform all 
duties incident to the office of Treasurer and other administrative duties as 
may be prescribed by the Council. All books, papers, vouchers, money 
and other property of whatever kind belonging to the Organization which 
are in the Treasurer’s possession or under his or her control will be 
returned to the Organization at the time of his or her death, resignation or 
removal from office. 
  

            Section 6.     Term of Office. The term of office for all officers will be 
as provided in Section 3, subsection B of the Agreement. 
  

28



Red Lined Draft Copy April 11, 2019 

 

5 
 

An officer may resign by written notice to the Organization. The 
resignation will be effective upon its receipt by the Organization and 
acceptance by the Council, or at a subsequent time specified in the notice 
of the resignation and upon its acceptance by the Council. 
  

ARTICLE V 

  

Financial Procedures and Restrictions on Transactions 

  

            Section 1.     Fiscal Year. The fiscal year will be as provided in 
Section 6, subsection A of the Agreement. 
  

            Section 2.     Financial Audits/Reports. A financial report will be 
prepared at the end of each fiscal year as provided in Section 6, 
subsection C of the Agreement. 
  

              Section 3.    Conflicts of Interest. 

  

   A.      Disclosure. When a Council member or an officer is 
affiliated with and organization seeking to provide services or facilities to 
the Organization, or when a Council member or officer has any duality of 
interest or possible conflict of interest, real or apparent, such affiliation or 
conflict of interest should be disclosed to the Council and made a matter 
of record, either when the interest becomes a matter of Council action or 
as part of a periodic procedure to be established by the Council. An 
affiliation with an organization will be considered to exist when a Council 
member or officer or a member of his or her immediate family or a blood 
relative is an officer, director, trustee, partner, employee or agent of the 
organization, or has any other substantial interest or dealings with the 
organization. 
  

  B.        Voting. Any Council member or officer having a duality of 
interest or possible conflict of interest on any matter should not vote or use 
his or her personal influence on the matter, and should not be counted in 
determining a quorum for the meeting at which the matter is voted upon, 
even though permitted by law. The Council should obtain and rely on 
appropriate comparability data, when appropriate. The minutes of the 
meeting should reflect that the disclosure was made, that the interested 
Council member abstained from voting, that his or her presence was not 
counted in determining a quorum, and that comparability data was 
considered. 
  

  C.        Statement of Position. The foregoing requirements should 
not be construed to prevent a Council member or officer from stating his or 
her position on the matter under consideration, nor from answering 
questions of other Council members relating to the matter. 

29



Red Lined Draft Copy April 11, 2019 

 

6 
 

  

ARTICLE VI 

  

Indemnification 

  

Section 1.      Indemnification. The Organization will, to the fullest 
extent now or hereafter permitted by law, indemnify any Councilperson or 
officer of the Corporation (and, to the extent provided in a resolution of the 
Council or by contract, may indemnify any volunteer, employee or agent of 
the Organization) who was or is a party to or threatened to be made a 
party to any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit or proceeding 
by reason of the fact that the person is or was a Councilperson, officer, 
volunteer, employee or agent of the Organization, or is or was serving at 
the request of the Organization as a director, trustee, officer, partner, 
volunteer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint 
venture, trust or other enterprise, whether for profit or not for profit, against 
expenses including attorneys’ fees (which expenses may be paid by the 
Organization in advance of a final disposition of the action, suit or 
proceeding as provided by law), judgments, penalties, fines and amounts 
paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the person in 
connection with the action, suit or proceeding if the person acted (or 
refrained from acting) in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably 
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Organization, 
and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, if the person had no 
reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. 
  

ARTICLE VII 

  

Dissolution 

  

Section 1.      Dissolution. If all or all but one of the parties to the 

Agreement terminates their membership in the Organization, the 

Organization will be dissolved as Set forth in Section 7, subsection B of 

the Agreement; namely, the trailways property and any improvements 

thereon located within the boundaries of each former member unit shall 

revert to ownership by the Michigan Department of Natural Resources, 

upon Such terms and conditions as are to be agreed upon by the Council 

and the Department of Natural Resources. Any remaining assets will be 

distributed for public or charitable purposes described in Section 501 (C) 

(3) of the Code consistent with the purposes for which the Organization 

was established. 

  

ARTICLE VIII 

  

30



Red Lined Draft Copy April 11, 2019 

 

7 
 

Amendments 

  

             Section 1.    Amendment of Bylaws. The Bylaws may be amended 

by an action of the Council as provided for in Section 4, subsection C of 

the Agreement. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 ATTACHMENT A 

(There is no attachment A) 

  

  

 

31



 

1 
 

BYLAWS 

OF 

POLLY ANN TRAILWAY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL, INC. 

  

  

ARTICLE I 

  

Name 

  

          Section 1.    Name of the Organization.   The name of tile 

Organization shall be the Polly Ann Trailway Management Council, Inc. 

(the “Organization”). 

  

ARTICLE II 

  

Purposes and Activities 

  

              Section 1.    Purpose of the Organization. 

  

A. The Organization is established for public and charitable 
purposes as described in Section 501 (C) (3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (the Code); namely to develop and 
maintain a recreational trail in Oakland County, Michigan 
between Joslyn Road (south of Waldon Road) in Orion 
Township and Boardman Road in Addison Township, 
utilizing the abandoned G.T.W. railroad right-of-way, (the 
“Polly Ann Trail”). 

 

  B.          To enter into any activity, do any and all acts consistent 

with and complementary to operating the Polly Ann Trail and in 

furtherance of the purposes set forth herein. 

  

             Section 2.        Restrictions on Activities. 

  

  A.           The Organization will at all times be conducted as an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code. The Organization 
will not carry on any activities which are not permitted to be carried on by 
(a) a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) 
of the Code, (b) a corporation eligible to receive tax deductible 
contributions under Section 170(c) and Section 2055, Section 2522 or 
Section 2106 of the Code.  
  

32



 

2 
 

  B.         No part of the assets or net earnings of the Organization 
may inure to the benefit of or be distributable to its Council members, 
officers, or other private persons; provided, however, that the Organization 
is authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for 
services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance 
of its charitable purposes. 
  

  C.          No substantial part of the activities of the Organization will 
be the carrying on of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence 
legislation. The Organization will not participate or intervene in any 
political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public 
office and will not publish or distribute statements relating to political 
campaigns. 
  

ARTICLE III 

  

Council 

  

            Section 1.     Governance. The property, business and affairs of the 
Organization will be managed by a governing council (the “Council”). 
  

            Section 2.     Powers and Duties of the Council. 

  

  A.          The Council will have all powers and duties as described 

in Section 5, subsection A of the Interlocal Agreement to Establish the 

Polly Ann Trailway Management Council, Inc. (the “Agreement”) by and 

among the Townships of Orion, Oxford and Addison and the Villages of 

Oxford and Leonard dated September 19, 1997, and the Agreement as 

amended dated  ________, 2020 , which amended Agreement is attached 

hereto as Attachment A, subject to the limitations set forth in Section 5, 

Subsection D of the Agreement. 

   

  B.         The Council may establish committees as the Council 
deems appropriate. The committees will have the authority as delegated 
to them by the Council. 
  

            Section 3.     Number, Selection and Term of Office. The number, 

selection and term of office of Council members will be as described in 

Section 3, subsection A of the Agreement. 

  

33



 

3 
 

             Section 4.    Meetings. Council meetings will be held as provided 
in Section 4, subsection A of the Agreement. 
  

             Section 5.    Special Meetings. Special meetings will be held as 

provided in Section 4, subsection A of the Agreement. 

  

             Section 6.    Notice of Meetings. Notice of all regular meetings of 
the Council will be given as provided in Section 4, subsection B of the 
Agreement. Notice of a regular meeting need not state the purpose or 
purposes of the meeting nor the business to be transacted at the meeting. 
Written notice of all special meetings will be given not less than two days 
before the special meeting. Notice of a special meeting must state the 
purpose or purposes of the meeting. 
  

Attendance of a Council member at a meeting constitutes a waiver 
of notice of the meeting, except where the Council member attends the 
meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any 
business because the meeting was not lawfully called or convened. 
  

            Section 7.     Conduct at Meetings. The meetings of the Council will 
be conducted as provided in Section 3, subsection B (4) of the Agreement. 
  

            Section 8.     Quorum and Voting. The quorum and voting 
requirements of the Council will be as provided in Section 4, subsection C 
of the Agreement. 
  

            Section 9.     Resignation, Removal and Vacancies. A Council 
member may resign by written notice to the Organization. The resignation 
will be effective upon its receipt by the Organization or a subsequent time 
as set forth in the notice of resignation. A Council member may be 
removed as provided in Section 3, subsection A of the Agreement. A 
Council member may also be removed, either with or without cause, by 
the affirmative vote of a majority of the Council members then in office. 
  

If a vacancy has occurred among the members of the Council, the 
vacancy will be filled as provided in Section 3, subsection A of the 
Agreement. 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

34



 

4 
 

ARTICLE IV 

  

Officers 

  

            Section 1.     Election, Appointment and Length of Service. The 
election or appointment of officers and the length of Service of the officers 
will be as provided in Section 3, subsection B of the Agreement. 
  

            Section 2.     The Chairperson/President. The Chairperson of the 
Council will also be President of the Organization and will have general 
and active management of the activities of the Organization. The 
President will see that all orders and resolutions of the Council are carried 
into effect. The President will execute all authorized conveyances, 
contracts or other obligations in the name of the Organization except 
where required by law to be otherwise signed and executed and except 
where the signing and execution is expressly delegated by the Council 
members to some other person. The President will preside at meetings of 
the Council. 
  

             Section 3.     The Vice Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson 

will, in the absence of the Chairperson, exercise all powers normally 

vested in the Chairperson and will perform any other duties prescribed by 

the Council or the Chairperson. In his or her absence, the Council 

members present at the meeting will designate another presiding officer. 

  

            Section 4.     The Secretary. In addition to the duties set forth in 
Section 3, subsection B of the Agreement, the Secretary will attend all 
meetings of the Council and record the minutes of all proceedings in a 
book to be kept for that purpose. The Secretary will perform any other 
duties prescribed by the Council. 
  

            Section 5.     The Treasurer. In addition to the duties set forth in 
Section 3, subsection B of the Agreement, the Treasurer wilt oversee the 
financial activities of the Organization. The Treasurer will perform all 
duties incident to the office of Treasurer and other administrative duties as 
may be prescribed by the Council. All books, papers, vouchers, money 
and other property of whatever kind belonging to the Organization which 
are in the Treasurer’s possession or under his or her control will be 
returned to the Organization at the time of his or her death, resignation or 
removal from office. 
  

            Section 6.     Term of Office. The term of office for all officers will be 
as provided in Section 3, subsection B of the Agreement. 
  

35



 

5 
 

An officer may resign by written notice to the Organization. The 
resignation will be effective upon its receipt by the Organization and 
acceptance by the Council, or at a subsequent time specified in the notice 
of the resignation and upon its acceptance by the Council. 
  

ARTICLE V 

  

Financial Procedures and Restrictions on Transactions 

  

            Section 1.     Fiscal Year. The fiscal year will be as provided in 
Section 6, subsection A of the Agreement. 
  

            Section 2.     Financial Audits/Reports. A financial report will be 
prepared at the end of each fiscal year as provided in Section 6, 
subsection C of the Agreement. 
  

              Section 3.    Conflicts of Interest. 

  

   A.      Disclosure. When a Council member or an officer is 
affiliated with and organization seeking to provide services or facilities to 
the Organization, or when a Council member or officer has any duality of 
interest or possible conflict of interest, real or apparent, such affiliation or 
conflict of interest should be disclosed to the Council and made a matter 
of record, either when the interest becomes a matter of Council action or 
as part of a periodic procedure to be established by the Council. An 
affiliation with an organization will be considered to exist when a Council 
member or officer or a member of his or her immediate family or a blood 
relative is an officer, director, trustee, partner, employee or agent of the 
organization, or has any other substantial interest or dealings with the 
organization. 
  

  B.        Voting. Any Council member or officer having a duality of 
interest or possible conflict of interest on any matter should not vote or use 
his or her personal influence on the matter, and should not be counted in 
determining a quorum for the meeting at which the matter is voted upon, 
even though permitted by law. The Council should obtain and rely on 
appropriate comparability data, when appropriate. The minutes of the 
meeting should reflect that the disclosure was made, that the interested 
Council member abstained from voting, that his or her presence was not 
counted in determining a quorum, and that comparability data was 
considered. 
  

  C.        Statement of Position. The foregoing requirements should 
not be construed to prevent a Council member or officer from stating his or 
her position on the matter under consideration, nor from answering 
questions of other Council members relating to the matter. 

36



 

6 
 

  

ARTICLE VI 

  

Indemnification 

  

Section 1.      Indemnification. The Organization will, to the fullest 
extent now or hereafter permitted by law, indemnify any Councilperson or 
officer of the Corporation (and, to the extent provided in a resolution of the 
Council or by contract, may indemnify any volunteer, employee or agent of 
the Organization) who was or is a party to or threatened to be made a 
party to any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit or proceeding 
by reason of the fact that the person is or was a Councilperson, officer, 
volunteer, employee or agent of the Organization, or is or was serving at 
the request of the Organization as a director, trustee, officer, partner, 
volunteer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint 
venture, trust or other enterprise, whether for profit or not for profit, against 
expenses including attorneys’ fees (which expenses may be paid by the 
Organization in advance of a final disposition of the action, suit or 
proceeding as provided by law), judgments, penalties, fines and amounts 
paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the person in 
connection with the action, suit or proceeding if the person acted (or 
refrained from acting) in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably 
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Organization, 
and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, if the person had no 
reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. 
  

ARTICLE VII 

  

Dissolution 

  

Section 1.      Dissolution. If all or all but one of the parties to the 

Agreement terminates their membership in the Organization, the 

Organization will be dissolved as Set forth in Section 7, subsection B of 

the Agreement; namely, the trailways property and any improvements 

thereon located within the boundaries of each former member unit shall 

revert to ownership by the Michigan Department of Natural Resources, 

upon Such terms and conditions as are to be agreed upon by the Council 

and the Department of Natural Resources. Any remaining assets will be 

distributed for public or charitable purposes described in Section 501 (C) 

(3) of the Code consistent with the purposes for which the Organization 

was established. 

  

 

 

37



 

7 
 

ARTICLE VIII 

  

Amendments 

  

             Section 1.    Amendment of Bylaws. The Bylaws may be amended 

by an action of the Council as provided for in Section 4, subsection C of 

the Agreement. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

38



Draft Date: April 11, 2019 
 

1 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

TOWNSHIPS OF ORION, OXFORD, ADDISON, 

VILLAGES OF OXFORD AND LEONARD 

AGREEMENT TO ESTABLISH POLLY ANN TRAILWAY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL, INC. 

 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into pursuant to the Urban 

Cooperation Act of 1967, 1967 PA 7, as amended (“Act 7”). MCL 124.501 et. seg. And Part 721 

of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (“Act 

451”), MCL 324.72101 et. seq., by and between the Townships or Orion, Oxford, and Addison; 

the Villages of Oxford and Leonard (the “Parties”), for the purpose of establishing and providing 

for the powers and duties of the POLLY ANN TRAILWAY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL, INC. (the 

“COUNCIL”). Each of the Parties is a “governmental agency”, as that term is defined in Act 451, 

and a “public Agency”, as that term is defined in Act 7, with the power to carry out the programs 

described in this Agreement. The Parties have each determined that the Parties will be able to 

provide the trailway programs described in this Agreement on a more cost effective basis if the 

Parties carry out such programs jointly. 

 

SECTION 1: ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE 

 

There is hereby established a separate legal entity to be known as the Polly Ann Trailway 

Management Council (the “Council”) for the purpose of administering this Agreement. The 

Council shall be a public body corporate having the powers functions and duties provided in this 

agreement, for the purpose of operating and maintaining that portion of 1 or more Michigan 

trailways located on state owned land pursuant to an agreement entered into under section 

72105 of Act 451 of 1994, (MCL 324.72105) between the Michigan Department of Natural 

Resources (the “DNR”) and the Council. 

 

SECTION 2: MEMBERSHIP 

 

MEMBER UNITS to the COUNCIL shall be those Parties who are signatories to this Agreement. 

The COUNCIL shall be considered an established public corporation when two local 

governments of the Parties named above have entered into this Agreement. Subsequent to the 

effective date of the COUNCIL, other local governments, whether or not named above, may 

become MEMBER UNITS by entering into this agreement. The COUNCIL may require, as a 

condition of membership, a fair share contribution agreement between the COUNCIL and any 

proposed MEMBER UNIT, if the COUNCIL determines that such agreement is necessary to 

provide fair allocation of costs among present and proposed MEMBER UNITS. All local 

governments who are signatories to this agreement shall have full MEMBER UNIT status in 

accordance with this agreement. This agreement and any agreement entered into or obligation 

incurred by any MEMBER UNIT in accordance with this agreement, shall be binding upon that 

MEMBER UNIT’S successor in interest, if any. 

 

 

 

39



Draft Date: April 11, 2019 
 

2 
 

 

SECTION 3: GOVERNANCE 

 

A. COUNCIL 

       

1. The COUNCIL shall be composed of two (2) persons from each MEMBER UNIT,               

one of which shall be a member of the MEMBER UNIT’s governing body or the 

Village Manager in the case of the Village of Leonard or Village of Oxford ; and 

one (1) non-voting citizen at large who shall be a resident of a MEMBER UNIT. 

The  governing body of each MEMBER UNIT shall, by resolution, appoint its   

representative(s). The non-voting citizen at large shall be appointed by the duly                

appointed MEMBER UNIT council representatives. 

 

2. At least once every two years, each MEMBER UNIT shall certify to the COUNCIL 

the persons appointed pursuant to Section 3, A, 1. 

  

3. Councilpersons shall serve at the pleasure of their MEMBER UNIT and may be 

removed by resolution of their MEMBER UNIT governing board at any time with 

or without cause. Councilpersons who are members of a MEMBER UNIT 

governing board shall not serve beyond their term on the governing board, 

unless the other Councilperson from that MEMBER UNIT is then a member of 

that MEMBER UNIT’S governing board. The non-voting citizen at large shall 

serve a two year term, commencing from the date of appointment. 

  

4.  Any vacancy on the COUNCIL arising for any reason shall be filled by 

appointment of the MEMBER UNIT governing board that made the original 

appointment, within forty-five (45) days of the vacancy, for the remainder of the 

unexpired term. A MEMBER UNIT shall certify to the COUNCIL persons 

appointed pursuant to this paragraph. A vacancy for any reason in the non-voting 

citizen at large position shall be filled by the COUNCIL within forty-five (45) days 

of the vacancy. 

 

5. Each MEMBER UNIT governing board may also appoint alternate 

councilpersons who shall serve with full privileges and duties in the absence of 

the regular councilpersons. 

 

6. The COUNCIL shall adopt Bylaws pursuant to the purpose and activities of this 

agreement and consistent with this Inter Local Agreement. 

 

 

B. OFFICERS 

 

1. The COUNCIL shall elect from its membership a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, 

Secretary, Treasurer, and such other officers as it may deem appropriate, who 

40



Draft Date: April 11, 2019 
 

3 
 

shall serve terms of one (1) year commencing January 1st, except for the officers 

first elected who shall serve that fraction of the calendar year between COUNCIL 

selection and December 31st. 

 

2. Officers shall serve at the pleasure of the COUNCIL and may be removed by 

resolution at any time. 

 

3. Vacancies in any office shall be filled by COUNCIL election within thirty (30) days 

of the vacancy, for the remainder of the unexpired term. 

 

4. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the COUNCIL and shall have all 

privileges and duties of a councilperson. The Vice Chairperson shall preside at 

all meetings of the COUNCIL at which the Chairperson is absent. The Secretary 

shall keep or cause to be made all non-financial reports, records and minutes 

required by this agreement of applicable law and shall be charged with assuring 

compliance with the Michigan Open Meetings Act and the Michigan Freedom of 

Information Act. The Treasurer shall have custody of all COUNCIL funds which 

shall be deposited, invested, and/or disbursed by the Treasurer as directed by 

the COUNCIL. The Treasurer shall be charged with assuring complete financial 

records and reports as required by this agreement or applicable law or contract 

provisions. 

  

SECTION 4: MEETINGS 

 

A. SCHEDULE/CALL OF MEETINGS 

 

1. The COUNCIL shall meet at least quarterly and shall annually establish a regular 

meeting schedule which shall posted at the offices of the MEMBER UNIT 

governing boards in similar form and within similar times as required by law for 

governmental meeting schedules.  

 

2.  Special meetings of the COUNCIL may be called by the Chairperson, or in the 

absence of the Chairperson, by the Vice Chairperson.  

 

B. NOTICE 

 

Each councilperson shall receive five (5) days written notice of all regular meeting. All notices of 

all meetings shall also be posted as required by the Michigan Open Meetings Act. 

 

C. VOTING 

 

A majority vote of the COUNCIL shall be necessary to take any official action at a regular or 

special meeting, provided that only those items on the agenda may be acted upon, and 

41



Draft Date: April 11, 2019 
 

4 
 

provided that only bills which represent budgeted expenses may be approved. A majority of the 

COUNCIL, appointed and serving, shall constitute a quorum in such cases. 

 

Bills which represent expenses not previously included in the budget may only be approved by a 

quorum including at least one member of each governmental unit.  

 

D. MINUTES 

 

Complete written minutes of all COUNCIL meetings shall be kept in compliance with applicable 

provisions of the Michigan Open Meetings Act. Copies of minutes shall be prepared within the 

time period established by the Open Meetings Act and sent to all councilpersons and the 

chairpersons of MEMBER UNIT governing boards as soon as reasonably possible following 

their preparation. 

 

E. RULES 

 

Roberts Rules of Order, as last revised, when not in conflict with this agreement or written 

standing rules the COUNCIL may adopt, shall serve as the parliamentary authority for all 

COUNCIL meetings. 

 

SECTION 5: POWERS 

 

 

A. GENERAL POWERS 

 

The COUNCIL shall have the following powers, authority and obligations: 

 

 1. Purchase, lease, receive, acquire, hold title in, trade, sell, lease or rent to others, 

dispose of, divide, distribute, own or exercise right of dominion over, all or part of any land, and 

any improvements thereon, within the railroad right of way described in Appendix A which is 

hereby incorporated and made part of this agreement. The COUNCIL may exercise the 

aforesaid powers over other land only upon consent of the governing board of the MEMBER 

UNIT in whose jurisdiction such land lies. The disposition of land acquired with aid from state or 

federal funds shall have the approval of the state or federal agency involved, if required by the 

agency. All property, real or personal, of the COUNCIL shall be used solely for the purposes 

stated in this agreement.  

 

2. Improve, build, maintain and operate public trails, access sites and appropriate 

structures on COUNCIL land.  

 

3.  Contract or cooperate with other governmental units, public agencies, or private 

parties, as-appropriate, to carry out COUNCIL functions or fulfill COUNCIL 

obligations.  

 

42



Draft Date: April 11, 2019 
 

5 
 

4. Contract a director and such other personnel as it may determine necessary who 

shall serve at the pleasure of the COUNCIL subject to applicable law. 

 

5. Accept funds, voluntary work, or other assistance to carry out COUNCIL 

functions or obligations, from any source, public or private, including, but not 

limited to, to local governmental funding of specific projects, state or federal 

grants, and private donations. A complete record of all funds received from any 

source shall be maintained and made part of the annual financial report. 

  

6. Establish policies or rules governing use of COUNCIL land or facilities not 

inconsistent with state or local law. 

 

7. Recommend local ordinance provisions to MEMBER UNITS, as necessary to 

provide for the safety of the public utilizing DNR and/or COUNCIL land or 

facilities. 

  

8. Make claims for federal or state aid payable to the individual or several MEMBER 

UNITS or the COUNCIL as may be available and appropriate to carry out 

COUNCIL functions. 

 

B. LIABILITY COVERAGE 

 

The COUNCIL shall purchase public liability insurance covering any cause of action, claim, 

damage, accident, injury or liability that may arise as a result of the ownership, construction, 

maintenance or operation of the land, public trails, access sites or other facilities of the 

COUNCIL. The COUNCIL purchasing such insurance shall name the Michigan Department of 

Natural Resources (DNR) and the MEMBER UNITS as additionally named insureds. 

 

C. REPORTS 

 

The COUNCIL shall, at least annually, make a full and complete report of all of its activities to 

the governing boards of all MEMBER UNITS. 

 

D. LIMITATIONS 

 

The COUNCIL shall have no power or authority to: 

 

1. Levy any tax in its own name or, except as provided in MCL 124.507(4), Issue 

any bonds in its own name. 

 2. Indebt any MEMBER UNIT in any way except as provided in this agreement. 

 3. Condemn any land for any purpose. 

 

 

 

43



Draft Date: April 11, 2019 
 

6 
 

SECTION 6: FINANCES 

 

A. FISCAL YEAR 

 

The fiscal year of the COUNCIL shall be from January 1st to December 31st. 

 

B. OPERATIONAL AND PROJECT BUDGET 

 

The COUNCIL shall each year develop an operational budget which shall be limited to meeting, 

postage, document or accounting costs, and similar basic costs. This budget shall include 

personnel, engineering, legal, land purchase or lease, or any development or maintenance 

costs incurred or to be incurred by the COUNCIL. For the purpose of initial budget, the budget 

shall be as set forth in Appendix B.  

 

C. COUNCILPERSON REIMBURSEMENT 

 

Each councilperson shall serve with no compensation from the COUNCIL for COUNCIL 

meetings actually attended. 

 

D. FINANCIAL AUDITS/REPORTS 

 

The Treasurer shall make or cause to be made a full and complete financial report to MEMBER 

UNITS of all the COUNCIL’S financial transactions and affairs at the end of each financial year. 

Said report may include a complete audit by a certified public accountant. State and federal 

audit requirements shall be fully met as applicable. MEMBER UNITS shall have the right, at 

their expense, to conduct such additional audits as they deem necessary or appropriate. 

 

 

SECTION 7: TERMINATION/DISSOLUTION 

 

A. MEMBER UNIT TERMINATION 

 

A MEMBER UNIT may terminate its membership only: 1) upon ninety (90) days written notice to 

the COUNCIL and termination shall be effective only upon the elapse of the ninety (90) days 

written notice to the COUNCIL and termination shall be effective only upon the elapse of the 

sixty (60) days. If a MEMBER UNIT terminates its membership, all COUNCIL MEMBER UNIT 

terminating its membership shall remain liable for all obligations incurred by it pursuant to this 

agreement and prior to actual termination. A MEMBER UNIT terminating its membership under 

subsection 2 shall remain liable for all obligations incurred by it pursuant to this agreement and 

prior to actual termination, but shall not be liable for financial obligations established by the 

COUNCIL’S new fiscal year budget request triggering the MEMBER UNIT’S termination. 

 

 

 

44



Draft Date: April 11, 2019 
 

7 
 

B. COUNCIL DISSOLUTION 

 

If all or all but one of the MEMBER UNITS terminates their membership, the COUNCIL shall be 

considered dissolved. 

 

1. Upon dissolution, the trailways property and any improvements thereon located 

within the boundaries of each former MEMBER UNIT shall revert to ownership by 

that unit of the Government, upon such terms and conditions as are to be agreed 

upon by the Member Units. Each Unit of Government shall be responsible to 

uphold the following provisions: 

 

A) The trailways property and the improvements thereon shall remain open 

for public recreational use in perpetuity; 

 

B) No prohibitions, impediments or blockages shall be made to the free 

passage of the trailways of legitimate trail users; 

 

C) The use of the trailways and improvements thereon shall remain subject 

to all applicable deed restrictions and all applicable state provisions 

imposed by law or contract. 

 

2. After dissolution, if any former MEMBER UNIT fails to uphold any of the 

provisions named in Section 7 (B) (1) above, any of the other former MEMBER 

UNITS shall have cause to enforce compliance with said provision(s), provided 

however that failure to seek enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a 

waiver. 

 

 

SECTION 8: AMENDMENTS 

 

This agreement may be amended in whole or in any part by the written agreement of the 

governing boards of all MEMBER UNITS. 

 

SECTION 9: STATE APPROVAL 

 

As soon as reasonably practicable after the effective date of this agreement, this agreement 

shall be officially submitted to the Office of the Governor for approval pursuant to the Urban 

Cooperation Act of 1967. 

 

SECTION 10: APPLICABLE LAWS 

 

The COUNCIL shall in all activities fully comply with applicable local, state and federal laws and 

regulations and with applicable grant conditions or contract provisions. 

 

45



Draft Date: April 11, 2019 
 

8 
 

 

SECTION 11: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This agreement shall be in full force and effect and the COUNCIL shall be considered in effect 

as an operating public corporation as provided in Section 2 above, which date shall be noted as 

the second date in time indicated below. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the MEMBER UNITS have signed 

the agreement on the dates indicated below. 

 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Supervisor, Addison Township 

 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Clerk, Addison Township 

 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

     Supervisor, Orion Township 

 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Clerk, Orion Township 

 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

     Supervisor, Oxford Township 

 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Clerk, Oxford Township 

 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

         President, Oxford Village 

 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Clerk, Oxford Village 

 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

           President, Leonard Village 

 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Clerk, Leonard Village 

46



 

1 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

TOWNSHIPS OF ORION, OXFORD, ADDISON, 

VILLAGES OF OXFORD AND LEONARD 

AGREEMENT WITH THE POLLY ANN TRAILWAY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL, INC. 

 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into pursuant to the Urban 

Cooperation Act of 1967, 1967 PA 7, as amended (“Act 7”). MCL 124.501 et. seg. And Part 721 

of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (“Act 

451”), MCL 324.72101 et. seq., by and between the Townships or Orion, Oxford, and Addison; 

the Villages of Oxford and Leonard (the “Parties”), for the purpose of establishing and providing 

for the powers and duties of the POLLY ANN TRAILWAY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL, INC. (the 

“COUNCIL”). Each of the Parties is a “governmental agency”, as that term is defined in Act 451, 

and a “public Agency”, as that term is defined in Act 7, with the power to carry out the programs 

described in this Agreement. The Parties have each determined that the Parties will be able to 

provide the trailway programs described in this Agreement on a more cost effective basis if the 

Parties carry out such programs jointly. 

 

SECTION 1: ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE 

 

There is hereby established a separate legal entity to be known as the Polly Ann Trailway 

Management Council (the “Council”) for the purpose of administering this Agreement. The 

Council shall be a public body corporate having the powers functions and duties provided in this 

agreement, for the purpose of operating and maintaining that portion of 1 or more Michigan 

trailways located on state owned land pursuant to an agreement entered into under section 

72105 of Act 451 of 1994, (MCL 324.72105) between the Michigan Department of Natural 

Resources (the “DNR”) and the Council. 

 

SECTION 2: MEMBERSHIP 

 

MEMBER UNITS to the COUNCIL shall be those Parties who are signatories to this Agreement. 

The COUNCIL shall be considered an established public corporation when two local 

governments of the Parties named above have entered into this Agreement. Subsequent to the 

effective date of the COUNCIL, other local governments, whether or not named above, may 

become MEMBER UNITS by entering into this agreement. The COUNCIL may require, as a 

condition of membership, a fair share contribution agreement between the COUNCIL and any 

proposed MEMBER UNIT, if the COUNCIL determines that such agreement is necessary to 

provide fair allocation of costs among present and proposed MEMBER UNITS. All local 

governments who are signatories to this agreement shall have full MEMBER UNIT status in 

accordance with this agreement. This agreement and any agreement entered into or obligation 

incurred by any MEMBER UNIT in accordance with this agreement, shall be binding upon that 

MEMBER UNIT’S successor in interest, if any. 

 

 

 

47



 

2 
 

 

SECTION 3: GOVERNANCE 

 

A. COUNCIL 

       

1. The COUNCIL shall be composed of two (2) persons from each of the MEMBER 

UNIT townships (Addison Township, Charter Township of Orion, and Charter 

Township of Oxford), and one (1) one person from each of the MEMBER UNIT 

villages (Village of Leonard, and Village of Oxford) of which shall be a member of 

the MEMBER UNIT’s governing body, or the Village Manager in the case of the 

Village of Leonard or Village of Oxford ; and one (1) non-voting citizen at large 

who shall be a resident of a MEMBER UNIT. The governing body of each 

MEMBER UNIT shall, by resolution, appoint its representative(s). The non-voting 

citizen at large shall be appointed by the duly appointed MEMBER UNIT council 

representatives. 

 

2. At least once every two years, each MEMBER UNIT shall certify to the COUNCIL 

the persons appointed pursuant to Section 3, A, 1. 

  

3. Councilpersons shall serve at the pleasure of their MEMBER UNIT and may be 

removed by resolution of their MEMBER UNIT governing board at any time with 

or without cause. Councilpersons who are members of a MEMBER UNIT 

governing board shall not serve beyond their term on the governing board, 

unless the other Councilperson from that MEMBER UNIT is then a member of 

that MEMBER UNIT’S governing board. The non-voting citizen at large shall 

serve a two (2) year term, commencing from the date of appointment. 

  

4.  Any vacancy on the COUNCIL arising for any reason shall be filled by 

appointment of the MEMBER UNIT governing board that made the original 

appointment, within forty-five (45) days of the vacancy, for the remainder of the 

unexpired term. A MEMBER UNIT shall certify to the COUNCIL persons 

appointed pursuant to this paragraph. A vacancy for any reason in the non-voting 

citizen at large position shall be filled by the COUNCIL within forty-five (45) days 

of the vacancy. 

 

5. Each MEMBER UNIT governing board may also appoint alternate 

councilpersons who shall serve with full privileges and duties in the absence of 

the regular councilpersons. 

 

6. The COUNCIL shall adopt Bylaws pursuant to the purpose and activities of this 

agreement and consistent with this Inter Local Agreement. 

 

 

 

48



 

3 
 

B. OFFICERS 

 

1. The COUNCIL shall elect from its membership a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, 

Secretary, Treasurer, and such other officers as it may deem appropriate, who 

shall serve terms of one (1) year commencing January 1st, except for the officers 

first elected who shall serve that fraction of the calendar year between COUNCIL 

selection and December 31st. 

 

2. Officers shall serve at the pleasure of the COUNCIL and may be removed by 

resolution at any time. 

 

3. Vacancies in any office shall be filled by COUNCIL election within thirty (30) days 

of the vacancy, for the remainder of the unexpired term. 

 

4. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the COUNCIL and shall have all 

privileges and duties of a councilperson. The Vice Chairperson shall preside at 

all meetings of the COUNCIL at which the Chairperson is absent. The Secretary 

shall keep or cause to be made all non-financial reports, records and minutes 

required by this agreement of applicable law and shall be charged with assuring 

compliance with the Michigan Open Meetings Act and the Michigan Freedom of 

Information Act. The Treasurer shall have custody of all COUNCIL funds which 

shall be deposited, invested, and/or disbursed by the Treasurer as directed by 

the COUNCIL. The Treasurer shall be charged with assuring complete financial 

records and reports as required by this agreement or applicable law or contract 

provisions. 

  

SECTION 4: MEETINGS 

 

A. SCHEDULE/CALL OF MEETINGS 

 

1. The COUNCIL shall meet at least quarterly and shall annually establish a regular 

meeting schedule which shall posted at the offices of the MEMBER UNIT 

governing boards in similar form and within similar times as required by law for 

governmental meeting schedules.  

 

2.  Special meetings of the COUNCIL may be called by the Chairperson, or in the 

absence of the Chairperson, by the Vice Chairperson.  

 

B. NOTICE 

 

Each councilperson shall receive five (5) days written notice of all regular meetings. All notices 

of all meetings shall also be posted as required by the Michigan Open Meetings Act. 

 

 

49



 

4 
 

C. VOTING 

 

A majority vote of the COUNCIL shall be necessary to take any official action at a regular or 

special meeting, provided that only those items on the agenda may be acted upon, and 

provided that only bills which represent budgeted expenses may be approved. A majority of the 

COUNCIL, appointed and serving, shall constitute a quorum in such cases. 

 

Bills which represent expenses not previously included in the budget may only be approved by a 

quorum including at least one member of each governmental unit.  

 

D. MINUTES 

 

Complete written minutes of all COUNCIL meetings shall be kept in compliance with applicable 

provisions of the Michigan Open Meetings Act. Copies of minutes shall be prepared within the 

time period established by the Open Meetings Act and sent to all councilpersons and the 

chairpersons of MEMBER UNIT governing boards as soon as reasonably possible following 

their preparation. 

 

E. RULES 

 

Roberts Rules of Order, as last revised, when not in conflict with this agreement or written 

standing rules the COUNCIL may adopt, shall serve as the parliamentary authority for all 

COUNCIL meetings. 

 

SECTION 5: POWERS 

 

 

A. GENERAL POWERS 

 

The COUNCIL shall have the following powers, authority and obligations: 

 

 1. Purchase, lease, receive, acquire, hold title in, trade, sell, lease or rent to others, 

dispose of, divide, distribute, own or exercise right of dominion over, all or part of any land, and 

any improvements thereon, within the railroad right of way described in Appendix A which is 

hereby incorporated and made part of this agreement. The COUNCIL may exercise the 

aforesaid powers over other land only upon consent of the governing board of the MEMBER 

UNIT in whose jurisdiction such land lies. The disposition of land acquired with aid from state or 

federal funds shall have the approval of the state or federal agency involved, if required by the 

agency. All property, real or personal, of the COUNCIL shall be used solely for the purposes 

stated in this agreement.  

 

2. Improve, build, maintain and operate public trails, access sites and appropriate 

structures on COUNCIL land.  

 

50



 

5 
 

3.  Contract or cooperate with other governmental units, public agencies, or private 

parties, as-appropriate, to carry out COUNCIL functions or fulfill COUNCIL 

obligations.  

 

4. Contract a director and such other personnel as it may determine necessary who 

shall serve at the pleasure of the COUNCIL subject to applicable law. 

 

5. Accept funds, voluntary work, or other assistance to carry out COUNCIL 

functions or obligations, from any source, public or private, including, but not 

limited to, to local governmental funding of specific projects, state or federal 

grants, and private donations. A complete record of all funds received from any 

source shall be maintained and made part of the annual financial report. 

  

6. Establish policies or rules governing use of COUNCIL land or facilities not 

inconsistent with state or local law. 

 

7. Recommend local ordinance provisions to MEMBER UNITS, as necessary to 

provide for the safety of the public utilizing DNR and/or COUNCIL land or 

facilities. 

  

8. Make claims for federal or state aid payable to the individual or several MEMBER 

UNITS or the COUNCIL as may be available and appropriate to carry out 

COUNCIL functions. 

 

B. LIABILITY COVERAGE 

 

The COUNCIL shall purchase public liability insurance covering any cause of action, claim, 

damage, accident, injury or liability that may arise as a result of the ownership, construction, 

maintenance or operation of the land, public trails, access sites or other facilities of the 

COUNCIL. The COUNCIL purchasing such insurance shall name the Michigan Department of 

Natural Resources (DNR) and the MEMBER UNITS as additionally named insureds. 

 

C. REPORTS 

 

The COUNCIL shall, at least annually, make a full and complete report of all of its activities to 

the governing boards of all MEMBER UNITS. 

 

D. LIMITATIONS 

 

The COUNCIL shall have no power or authority to: 

 

1. Levy any tax in its own name or, except as provided in MCL 124.507(4), Issue 

any bonds in its own name. 

 2. Indebt any MEMBER UNIT in any way except as provided in this agreement. 

51



 

6 
 

 3. Condemn any land for any purpose. 

 

 

 

SECTION 6: FINANCES 

 

A. FISCAL YEAR 

 

The fiscal year of the COUNCIL shall be from January 1st to December 31st. 

 

B. OPERATIONAL AND PROJECT BUDGET 

 

The COUNCIL shall each year develop an operational budget which shall be limited to meeting, 

postage, document or accounting costs, and similar basic costs. This budget shall include 

personnel, engineering, legal, land purchase or lease, or any development or maintenance 

costs incurred or to be incurred by the COUNCIL.  

 

C. COUNCILPERSON REIMBURSEMENT 

 

Each councilperson shall serve with no compensation from the COUNCIL for COUNCIL 

meetings actually attended. 

 

D. FINANCIAL AUDITS/REPORTS 

 

The Treasurer shall make or cause to be made a full and complete financial report to MEMBER 

UNITS of all the COUNCIL’S financial transactions and affairs at the end of each financial year. 

Said report may include a complete audit by a certified public accountant. State and federal 

audit requirements shall be fully met as applicable. MEMBER UNITS shall have the right, at 

their expense, to conduct such additional audits as they deem necessary or appropriate. 

 

 

SECTION 7: TERMINATION/DISSOLUTION 

 

A. MEMBER UNIT TERMINATION 

 

A MEMBER UNIT may terminate its membership only: 1) upon ninety (90) days written notice to 

the COUNCIL and termination shall be effective only upon the elapse of the ninety (90) days 

written notice to the COUNCIL and termination shall be effective only upon the elapse of the 

sixty (60) days. If a MEMBER UNIT terminates its membership, all COUNCIL MEMBER UNITS 

terminating its membership shall remain liable for all obligations incurred by it pursuant to this 

agreement and prior to actual termination. A MEMBER UNIT terminating its membership under 

subsection 2 shall remain liable for all obligations incurred by it pursuant to this agreement and 

prior to actual termination, but shall not be liable for financial obligations established by the 

COUNCIL’S new fiscal year budget request triggering the MEMBER UNIT’S termination. 

52



 

7 
 

B. COUNCIL DISSOLUTION 

 

If all or all but one of the MEMBER UNITS terminates their membership, the COUNCIL shall be 

considered dissolved. 

 

1. Upon dissolution, the trailways property and any improvements thereon located 

within the boundaries of each former MEMBER UNIT shall revert to ownership by 

that unit of the Government, upon such terms and conditions as are to be agreed 

upon by the Member Units. Each Unit of Government shall be responsible to 

uphold the following provisions: 

 

A) The trailways property and the improvements thereon shall remain open 

for public recreational use in perpetuity; 

 

B) No prohibitions, impediments or blockages shall be made to the free 

passage of the trailways of legitimate trail users; 

 

C) The use of the trailways and improvements thereon shall remain subject 

to all applicable deed restrictions and all applicable state provisions 

imposed by law or contract. 

 

2. After dissolution, if any former MEMBER UNIT fails to uphold any of the 

provisions named in Section 7 (B) (1) above, any of the other former MEMBER 

UNITS shall have cause to enforce compliance with said provision(s), provided 

however that failure to seek enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a 

waiver. 

 

 

SECTION 8: AMENDMENTS 

 

This agreement may be amended in whole or in any part by the written agreement of the 

governing boards of all MEMBER UNITS. 

 

SECTION 9: STATE APPROVAL 

 

As soon as reasonably practicable after the effective date of this agreement, this agreement 

shall be officially submitted to the Office of the Governor for approval pursuant to the Urban 

Cooperation Act of 1967. 

 

SECTION 10: APPLICABLE LAWS 

 

The COUNCIL shall in all activities fully comply with applicable local, state and federal laws and 

regulations and with applicable grant conditions or contract provisions. 

 

53



 

8 
 

 

SECTION 11: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This agreement shall be in full force and effect and the COUNCIL shall be considered in effect 

as an operating public corporation as provided in Section 2 above, which date shall be noted as 

the second date in time indicated below. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the MEMBER UNITS have signed 

the agreement on the dates indicated below. 

 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Supervisor, Addison Township 

 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Clerk, Addison Township 

 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

     Supervisor, Orion Township 

 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Clerk, Orion Township 

 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

     Supervisor, Oxford Township 

 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Clerk, Oxford Township 

 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

         President, Oxford Village 

 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Clerk, Oxford Village 

 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

           President, Leonard Village 

 

DATE:__________________________ BY:___________________________________ 

       Clerk, Leonard Village 

54



2/12/2020

POLLY ANN TRAIL FUNDING FORMULA 2020-2022

Beginning Amended
Contruibution 2020 2020 2021 2022

Municipality Percentage $38,500 $41,000 $45,000 $50,000
Orion Township 38.98% $15,007.30 $15,981.80 $17,541.00 $19,490.00
Oxford Township 28.11% $10,822.35 $11,525.10 $12,649.50 $14,055.00
Addison Township 22.14% $8,523.90 $9,077.40 $9,963.00 $11,070.00
Oxford Village 5.98% $2,302.30 $2,451.80 $2,691.00 $2,990.00
Leonard Village 4.79% $1,844.15 $1,963.90 $2,155.50 $2,395.00

TOTAL: 100.00% $38,500.00 $41,000.00 $45,000.00 $50,000.00

ANNUAL INCREASED AMOUNTS

Contruibution 2020 2021 2022
Municipality Percentage Increase Increase Increase
Orion Township 38.98% $974.50 $1,559.20 $1,949.00
Oxford Township 28.11% $702.75 $1,124.40 $1,405.50
Addison Township 22.14% $553.50 $885.60 $1,107.00
Oxford Village 5.98% $149.50 $239.20 $299.00
Leonard Village 4.79% $119.75 $191.60 $239.50

TOTAL: 100.00% $2,500.00 $4,000.00 $5,000.00

55



56



2/12/2020

POLLY ANN TRAILWAY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL BUDGET
Fund 298

2020 2020 2021 2022
Proposed Amended Proposed Proposed

General Ledger Number REVENUE Description BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
298-000-402.000 Opening Fund Balance $15,030.00 $13,030.00 $9,030.00 $4,030.00
298-000-538.000 Polly Ann Trail Grant $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
298-000-664.000 Interest - Savings Account $70.00 $70.00 $70.00 $70.00
298-000-675.005 Donations, Sales and Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
298-000-675.006 Performance Bond / In Kind Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
298-000-690.001 Contributions - Orion Township $15,007.00 $15,981.80 $17,541.00 $19,490.00
298-000-690.002 Contributions - Oxford Township $10,822.00 $11,525.10 $12,649.50 $14,055.00
298-000-690.003 Contributions - Village of Oxford $2,302.00 $9,077.40 $9,963.00 $11,070.00
298-000-690.004 Contributions - Addison Township $8,524.00 $2,451.80 $2,691.00 $2,990.00
298-000-690.005 Contributions - Village of Leonard $1,845.00 $1,963.90 $2,155.50 $2,395.00
AMENDMENT ADJUSTMENT
TOTAL Net of REVENUES /
Appropriations $53,600.00 $54,100.00 $54,100.00 $54,100.00

General Ledger Number EXPENDITURE Description
298-853-727.000 Fees - Administrative $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
298-853-728.000 Office Supplies $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00
298-853-730.000 Postage $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00
298-853-819.000 Services - Professional $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
298-853-829.000 Membership Dues $255.00 $255.00 $255.00 $255.00
298-853-853.000 Telephone $350.00 $350.00 $350.00 $350.00
298-853-861.002 Contracted Services - PATMC $23,000.00 $23,000.00 $23,000.00 $23,000.00
298-853-880.007 Use of Facilities - Leonard $1,845.00 $1,845.00 $1,845.00 $1,845.00
298-853-910.001 Insurance - PATMC $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
298-853-921.664 Utilities - Electric PATMC $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00
298-853-927.001 Utilities - Water $900.00 $900.00 $900.00 $900.00
298-853-932.000 Maintenance of Grounds $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00
298-853-933.664 Equipment and Hardware $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
298-853-934.000 Fuel and Oil $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00
298-853-962.000 Miscellaneous $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00
298-853-962.011 Misc. - Advertising and Web $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00
298-853-962.012 Misc. - Licenses and Fees $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00
298-853-962.014 PATMC Sponsored Events $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
298-853-962.016 Grant Expenses $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
AMENDMENT ADJUSTMENT
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $53,600.00 $54,100.00 $54,100.00 $54,100.00

2019 Beginning FUND BALANCE $86,973.00

PROJECTED 2020 Beginning
FUND BALANCE $66,891.00
PROJECTED 2021 Beginning
FUND BALANCE $53,861.00
PROJECTED 2022 Beginning
FUND BALANCE $44,831.00

57



POLLY ANN TRAILWAY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL BUDGET
Fund 298

2019 2019
2019 Activity 2019 FINAL 2020

Original Through Amendment  Amended Proposed
General Ledger Number REVENUE Description BUDGET 11/20/2019  Amount BUDGET BUDGET
298-000-402.000 Opening Fund Balance $10,345.00 $0.00 $9,737.00 $20,082.00 $15,030.00
298-000-538.000 Polly Ann Trail Grant $5,000.00 $8,909.98 $3,910.00 $8,910.00 $0.00
298-000-664.000 Interest - Savings Account $70.00 $58.01 $0.00 $70.00 $70.00
298-000-675.005 Donations, Sales and Reimbursements $5,000.00 $5,667.00 $667.00 $5,667.00 $0.00
298-000-675.006 Performance Bond / In Kind Services $1,000.00 $0.00 ($1,000.00) $0.00 $0.00
298-000-690.001 Contributions - Orion Township $15,007.00 $15,007.00 $0.00 $15,007.00 $15,007.00
298-000-690.002 Contributions - Oxford Township $10,822.00 $10,822.00 $0.00 $10,822.00 $10,822.00
298-000-690.003 Contributions - Village of Oxford $2,302.00 $2,302.00 $0.00 $2,302.00 $2,302.00
298-000-690.004 Contributions - Addison Township $8,524.00 $8,524.00 $0.00 $8,524.00 $8,524.00
298-000-690.005 Contributions - Village of Leonard $1,845.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,845.00 $1,845.00
AMENDMENT ADJUSTMENT $13,314.00
TOTAL Net of REVENUES /
Appropriations $59,915.00 $51,289.99 $73,229.00 $53,600.00

General Ledger Number EXPENDITURE Description
298-853-727.000 Fees - Administrative $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
298-853-728.000 Office Supplies $600.00 $150.43 ($400.00) $200.00 $200.00
298-853-730.000 Postage $150.00 $133.64 $0.00 $150.00 $150.00
298-853-819.000 Services - Professional $2,000.00 $0.00 ($2,000.00) $0.00 $500.00
298-853-829.000 Membership Dues $270.00 $250.00 $0.00 $270.00 $255.00
298-853-853.000 Telephone $350.00 $275.02 $0.00 $350.00 $350.00
298-853-861.002 Contracted Services - PATMC $23,000.00 $20,792.00 $0.00 $23,000.00 $23,000.00
298-853-880.007 Use of Facilities - Leonard $1,845.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,845.00 $1,845.00
298-853-910.001 Insurance - PATMC $3,000.00 $2,894.00 ($106.00) $2,894.00 $3,000.00
298-853-921.664 Utilities - Electric PATMC $300.00 $220.57 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00
298-853-927.001 Utilities - Water $300.00 $834.96 $550.00 $850.00 $900.00
298-853-932.000 Maintenance of Grounds $12,000.00 $11,039.22 $0.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00
298-853-933.664 Equipment and Hardware $7,000.00 $8,816.34 $2,000.00 $9,000.00 $3,000.00
298-853-934.000 Fuel and Oil $400.00 $282.54 ($50.00) $350.00 $400.00
298-853-962.000 Miscellaneous $100.00 $84.19 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00
298-853-962.011 Misc. - Advertising and Web $500.00 $2,486.50 $2,000.00 $2,500.00 $500.00
298-853-962.012 Misc. - Licenses and Fees $100.00 $20.00 ($80.00) $20.00 $100.00
298-853-962.014 PATMC Sponsored Events $2,000.00 $81.28 ($1,800.00) $200.00 $1,000.00
298-853-962.016 Grant Expenses $5,000.00 $18,115.05 $13,200.00 $18,200.00 $5,000.00
AMENDMENT ADJUSTMENT $13,314.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $59,915.00 $67,475.74 $73,229.00 $53,600.00

2019 Beginning FUND BALANCE $86,973.00

PROJECTED 2020 Beginning FUND
BALANCE $66,891.00
PROJECTED 2021 Beginning FUND
BALANCE $51,861.00

58



SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this ______ day of ___________ 2020, by and between the City of 

Auburn Hills, a Michigan municipal corporation ("Auburn Hills") and the Charter Township of 

Orion ("Orion"), to enter into a Second Amendment to this Agreement concerning the provision of 

sanitary sewer service to certain specific property located in Orion and to allow for an increase in 

the permitted flow from Orion into the Auburn Hills sanitary sewer system.   

RECITATIONS 

On December 2, 2005, the parties entered into an Agreement whereby Orion would be 

permitted to introduce a specific amount of sanitary sewage originating from property located in 

Orion into the Auburn Hills sanitary sewer system. As set forth in the initial Agreement entered 

into in December 2005, the parties wish to continue the relationship and abide by all terms and 

conditions not otherwise amended by written agreement of the parties.   

On January 31, 2007, the parties entered into an Amendment to Agreement wherein Dutton 

Partners through a Consent Judgment with Orion was allowed to convert a portion of its property 

from the agreed upon 176 duplex units to 176 single-family homes.  The parties further agreed as 

to the appropriate residential equivalency unit (“REU”) to be used for the purposes of determining 

sanitary sewer flow for both duplex and single-family residences. 

 Whereas, the parties now wish by way of this Second Amendment to Agreement to add 

property to the underlying sanitary service agreement (said property identified in the attached map 

“Exhibit A” and otherwise referred to and known as Lavender Ridge) and to amend the prior 

Agreements to reflect the increased population calculation, which is based upon a study conducted 

by Oakland County (the “County”) in 2018. The study evaluated how population changes and high 

efficiency fixtures changed the calculation standards.  Based upon these new standards, the new 

calculated population of the residential units in Orion Township is 1489. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED to by and between the parties that the 

Agreement dated December 2, 2005, and Amendment to Agreement dated January 31, 2007, shall 

and is hereby amended as follows: 

1. The property depicted on the attached Exhibit A and otherwise known as the 

Lavender Ridge Development, shall be permitted by both Orion and Auburn Hills to discharge its 

sanitary sewage into the Auburn Hills sanitary sewer system based upon the accepted and agreed 

upon residential equivalency unit standards of Oakland County and as set forth in the amended 

Agreement between the parties dated January 31, 2007.   

 

2. Paragraph 9.A. of the original Agreement and Sec. 2 of the First Amendment to the 

Agreement shall be amended to reflect the increased population of 1489, and the anticipated 

increase in flow in the Auburn Hills system shall be increased by .003 Cubic Feet per Second 

(“CFS”) average flow and .009 CFS peak flow.   

 

59



3. Other than the agreed upon changes set forth herein, the parties agree that all 

provisions of the Agreement and amended Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and the 

Agreement and Amendment to Agreement shall only be amended as set forth herein in the Second 

Amendment to Agreement.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed by 

their duly authorized officers the day and year first written above. 

 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS    CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION 

 

 

 

             

By: Kevin McDaniel    By: Chris Barnett 

Its: Mayor      Its: Supervisor 

 

 

             

By: Laura M. Pierce     By: Penny Shults 

Its: Clerk      Its: Clerk 

 

 

Acknowledgement: 

 

      

By: Jim Nash 

 

Water Resources Commissioner 

 

Dated:       

 

 

60



Service Layer Credits: Oakland County, MI
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar
Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA,
USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User
Community

Source: Data provided by the GIS Department at OHM Advisors. OHM
Advisors does not warrant the accuracy of the data and/or the map.
This document is intended to depict the approximate spatial location of
the mapped features within the Community and all use is strictly at the
user’s own risk.

Coordin ate Sys tem : WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map  Publis hed: December 6, 2019

88 8.5 22 .67 11    |    o hm - ad vi so rs.co m

³
Orion Township

Map Change Request
Sewer

Tax Parcel Plus
61

stevens
Pen
.

stevens
Line

stevens
Line

stevens
Line

stevens
Line

stevens
Line

stevens
Line

stevens
Line

stevens
Line

stevens
Line

stevens
Text Box
Ex. Sewer District Boundary

stevens
Text Box
Exhibit A

stevens
Line

stevens
Polygon

stevens
Text Box
ProposedLavenderRidge

stevens
Line

stevens
Text Box
Proposed  Expanded Boundary



    

V3.12-10-19 

Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Chris Barnett, Supervisor 

From: Jeff Stout, Director of Public Services 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 12, 2020 

Subject: Construction materials testing and engineering QC, For East Clarkston Pathway 

  

 
 
REQUEST : Township Board approval which will authorize the Supervisor to enter into a contract with G2 
to provide testing services for the East Clarkston pathway project. 

 
 
REASON : Testing services are required to ensure contractor compliance for all of our projects. 
 
 
PROCESS : OHM has reviewed both scope and price and are recommending approval by the Township. 
 
 

BUDGET : Yes 

If yes, fill out information below: 
 
 Financial Item? ☒  Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Expected Invoice Date: 2nd Qtr  Reviewed by Budget Director? ☒ 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 
 

Authorize the Township Supervisor to sign the agreement with G2 to provide testing services for the East 
Clarkston Rd. Pathway Project. 
 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

Fund Name Account No. Description 
Budget 
Amount Cost 

Remaining 
Budget 

Safety Path 402-958-982.000-19SP002 Cap Out  54,500.00  

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



    

V3.12-10-19 

Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Orion Township Board of Trustees 

From: Penny S. Shults, Clerk 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 12, 2020 

Subject: Solicitation Request: VFW Post 334 – Buddy Poppy Fundraiser 

 
 
REQUEST 

Attached please find a request from Randy Stetson, Senior-Vice Commander and Buddy Poppy Chairman of 
the VFW Post 334, to conduct their annual Buddy Poppy Fundraiser from May 7-9 and May 15-17, 2020, at 
various locations in the Township, especially adjacent to the Orion Veterans Memorial. 
REASON 

Pursuant to Section 9.B of Ordinance No. 95, Peddlers & Solicitors Regulation, "recognized non-profit 
organizations may be exempt from one or more of the provisions of this ordinance upon application to the 
Township Board." Also, under Section 9.D, "Exemptions under this subsection may be granted by the Board 
 at its sole discretion and under any conditions the Board may proscribe.” 
PROCESS 

In the past, the Board has exempted non-profit organizations from Section 4, License Application Process, 
Section 5, Licenses, Section 6, License Fee, and Section 8, Hours of Operation. Background checks have not 
been requested on registered non-profit organizations. The request has been forwarded to the OCSO for 
review.  

If yes, fill out information below: 
 
 Financial Item? ☐  Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Expected Invoice Date: Click or tap to enter a date.  Reviewed by Budget Director? ☐ 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 

Board action would be to approve the roadside solicitation request from VFW Post 334, and because the 
fundraiser is on behalf of a non-profit organization, waive the requirements of Sections 4, 5, 6, and 8 of Ord. 
95, Peddlers & Solicitors Regulation, with the understanding that solicitors will not be collection from drivers 
on either Joslyn & M-24; that the free flow of traffic will not be impeded. 
 

 
 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

Fund Name Account No. Description 
Budget 
Amount Cost 

Remaining 
Budget 

      

70



71



    

V3.12-10-19 

Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Orion Township, Board of Trustees 

From: Penny S. Shults, Clerk 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 13, 2020 

Subject: Set Election Inspector Pay 

 

REQUEST 

Request would be to set the Election Inspector full day rate at $200.00 (currently $175.00), half day rate at 
$100.00 (currently $87.50). Increase Chair and Co-Chair stipend to $75.00 (currently $50.00), and pay 
$25.00 if an election inspector is required to appear before the Oakland County Board of Canvassers.  
 
REASON 

Due to the added responsibilities brought on each of our Election workers we are asking for a rate increase.  
 
PROCESS 

This will be discussed by the Election Commission at the February 14, 2020 Election Commission meeting. If 
their recommendation is to approve the Election Inspector pay rate, this item will remain on the agenda. If 
their recommendation is to deny, this item will be removed. No budget adjustment is necessary.  
 

BUDGET 

If yes, fill out information below: 
 
 Financial Item? ☒  Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Expected Invoice Date: N/A  Reviewed by Budget Director? ☒ 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 

Board action would be to set the Election Inspector full day rate at $200.00, half day rate at $100.00. 
Increase Chair and Co-Chair stipend to $75.00, and pay $25.00 if an election inspector is required to appear 
before the Oakland County Board of Canvassers.  
  
 

 
 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

Fund Name Account No. Description 
Budget 
Amount Cost 

Remaining 
Budget 

      

72



    Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Orion Township Board of Trustees 

From: Penny S. Shults, Clerk 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 14, 2020 

Subject: Solicitation Request:  Clean Water Action 

 Pending x Consent 

 
REQUEST 

Attached is a notice from Clean Water Action, a national non-profit (501c4) environmental advocacy 
organization, of their intent to conduct a door-to-door canvass in Orion Township over the next few weeks. 

 
REASON 

Pursuant to Section 9.B of Ordinance No. 95, Peddlers & Solicitors Regulation, "...recognized non-profit 
organizations may be exempt from one or more of the provisions of this ordinance upon application to the 
Township Board." Also, under Section 9.D, "Exemptions under this subsection may be granted by the Board 
 at its sole discretion and under any conditions the Board may proscribe.” 
 
In the past, the Board has exempted non-profit organizations from Section 4, License Application Process, 
Section 5, Licenses, Section 6, License Fee, and Section 8, Hours of Operation. Also, in the past, background 
checks have not been requested on registered non-profit organizations. 

 
PROCESS 

Clean Water Action has provided their notice of intent and has provided a staff list as well.  The item has 
also been forwarded to the OCSO for their review. 

 

BUDGET -   Financial Item?    Yes x No If yes, fill out information below: 

Fund Name Account No. Description 
Budget 
Amount Cost 

Remaining 
Budget 

      

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 

The action before the Board is to receive and file the notice of intent and authorize the Clerk to sign and 
return the notice, with a notation that Clean Water Action may solicit only between the hours of 11:00 a.m. 
and ½ before sunset, per Ord. 95. 

 
 

 
 

73



 

909 Abbot Road, East Lansing, MI, 48823 

Phone 936.444.5310  |  chuetteman@cleanwateraction.org 

www.CleanWaterAction.org/mi 

 

 
 

 
 

 
EMAILED to pshults@oriontownship.org, 2/13/2020 

Penny S. Shults 
Hi Penny, 

Since we have worked in your community before, you will remember that Clean Water Action is a national 
environmental organization working for clean and safe water, waste prevention and funding for enforcement of 
environmental protection. The purpose of this letter is to again provide background information on Clean 
Water Action and our canvass so that you are aware of our activities and have the information you need to 
respond to any inquiries about our work. 

As in previous years, our program includes informing residents in your community of our work and asking 
them to become involved in our campaigns. We conduct a door-to-door canvass asking residents to make 
contributions and sign support statements. We may also ask them to write letters, make phone calls, volunteer 
time and vote. 

We will be conducting our canvass in your community beginning ASAP and completing our work by April 31, 
2020 (depending on the size of the community). We will be out in the community from 4pm-9pm, Monday – 
Friday; 10am-7pm, Saturdays. 

As a courtesy to all communities in which we canvass, we notify each township or city before starting work 
there. Our canvassers also carry photo identification cards from our organization. A list of the names of our 
canvass staff is provided with this letter as well as a letter from the IRS recognizing our tax-exempt status 
under section 501(c4) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Because Clean Water Action is engaged in constitutionally-protected political speech in its canvass operation, it 
is not required to obtain a permit prior to engaging in this activity. Watchtower Bible & Tract Society of New 
York v. Village of Stratton, 536 U.S. 150 (2002). 

Please notify all police officers and dispatch of our presence so that they are aware of our constitutionally-
protected right to engage in our membership drive. I have enclosed organizational documents and supporting 
materials of our state regulations. You will note that the last page of this packet of information is a verification 
form that states we have made you aware of our activities. Please sign and return the “Canvass Verification” 
form via email so that both the residents and law enforcement officers in your area will know that we have 
contacted your office should any questions arise. Should you need additional information, please call me at -
(517) 203-0754. Thank you for your time. 

Sincerely, 
 
Christopher Huetteman, Staff Director 

74



75



  

  

  

  

  

CANVASS VERIFICATION  
  
  

This is to notify the residents of 

___________________________________ that CLEAN WATER 

ACTION has provided this municipality with information in regards to 

their door-to-door canvass.  They have included IRS verification of tax-

exempt status, certification of their ability to conduct business in 

Michigan and a list of canvass staff that will be going door-todoor in the 

community.  Furthermore, we are aware that CLEAN WATER ACTION 

will be conducting their activities in our community between the hours of 

4 and 9pm.  

  

THIS IS IN NO WAY MEANT TO BE AN  

ENDORSEMENT OF THEIR ACTIVITIES 

OR THEIR LEGISLATIVE VIEWS.  
  
___________________________________________________________

__  

City or Township Official  

  

  

_________________________________    ____________________  

Title               Date  

76



77



Clean Water Action- East Lansing Staff List
Updated 2/13/2020

First Last Address City State Zip Birthday DL Notes
Christopher Huetteman 1824 Gilmore Street Howell MI 48855 4/19/1993 H 355 115 676 303
Christopher Steel 1862 Hamilton Road Okemos MI 48864 9/13/1988 S 340 115 051 711
Daniel Sayre 1141 W Grand River Ave, Apt 513 Williamston MI 48895 4/16/1998 S 600 135 441 295
Megan Finkbeiner 3031 S Washington Ave, Apt L10 Lansing MI 48910 8/25/1997 F 521 599 209 663
Tamara Smith 413 Beaver Street Lansing MI 48906 6/30/1989 S 530 785 778 517
Alaister Corey 522 Locust St., Apt 3 Kalamazoo MI 49007 4/26/1996 C 600 040 738 320

Vehicle Model Color License Plate VIN
Ford Transit Blue DC58535 NM0GE9F72J1361876
Dodge Caravan Black CAA891 2C4RDGBG6ER162923

78



    

V3.12-10-19 

Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Orion Township Board of Trustees 

From: Penny S. Shults, Clerk 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 13, 2020 

Subject: Second Reading – Update Tobacco, Alternative Nicotine Products, and Vapor Products 
Ordinance 

 

REQUEST 

Board Action to approve the second reading and update the Tobacco, Alternative Nicotine Products, and 
Vapor Products Ordinance.  
 
REASON 

Please refer to documentation from your January 21, 2020 meeting packet (following). 
 
PROCESS 

First reading was held on January 21, 2020 and the item was advertised in the February 5, 2020 Edition of 
the Lake Orion Review for second reading and possible adoption at the February 18, 2020 meeting.  
 

BUDGET 

If yes, fill out information below: 
 
 Financial Item? ☐  Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Expected Invoice Date: Click or tap to enter a date.  Reviewed by Budget Director? ☐ 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 

Board Action would be to approve the second reading of Tobacco, Alternative Nicotine Products, and Vapor 
Products Ordinance.  

 
 

☐ Consent ☒ Pending 

Fund Name Account No. Description 
Budget 
Amount Cost 

Remaining 
Budget 

      

79



Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Charter Township of Orion 

 

Ordinance No.  

TOBACCO, ALTERNATIVE NICOTINE PRODUCTS, AND 
VAPOR 

PRODUCTS 
 

 

Adopted October 21, 2019

80



Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion  

Ordinance No. 144  
 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO PROTECT THE SAFETY AND WELFARE OF THE PEOPLE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ORION BY PREVENTING THE POSSESSION OR USE OF TOBACCO, VAPOR PRODUCTS, OR ALTERNATIVE 

NICOTINE PRODUCTS BY MINORS; TO PROHIBIT THE SALE OF TOBACCO, VAPOR PRODUCTS, OR 

ALTERNATIVE NICOTINE PRODUCTS TO MINORS; AND TO INCLUDE AND PROVIDE PENALTIES FOR 

VIOLATIONS. 

 

Section I – DEFINITIONS 
 

“Alternative nicotine product” means a noncombustible product containing nicotine that is intended for human consumption, 

whether chewed, absorbed, dissolved, or ingested by any other means. Alternative nicotine product does not include a tobacco 

product, a vapor product, or a product regulated as a drug or device by the United States Food and Drug Administration under 

Subchapter V of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 USC 351 to 360FFF-7. 

 

 “Liquid nicotine” means a liquid or other substance containing nicotine in any concentration that is sold, marketed, or intended 

for use in a noncombustible product that employs a heating element, power source, electronic circuit, or other electronic, 

chemical, or mechanical means, regardless of shape or size, that can be used to produce vapor from nicotine or any other 

substance, and the use or inhalation of which simulates smoking.  

 

“Liquid nicotine container” means a bottle or other container holding liquid nicotine in any concentration but does not include 

a cartridge containing liquid nicotine if the cartridge is prefilled and sealed by the manufacturer of the cartridge and is not 

intended to be opened by the consumer. 

 

“Person” means an individual, partnership, fiduciary, association, corporation, retailer or other legal entity. 

 

“Retailer” means any person who sells tobacco products, vapor products, or alternative nicotine products to individuals for 

personal consumption, or who owns or operates a facility where tobacco products or nicotine products are sold. 

 

“Tobacco product” means a product that contains tobacco and is intended for human consumption, including, but not limited 

to, a cigarette, noncigarette smoking tobacco, or smokeless tobacco, as those terms are defined in section 2 of the Tobacco 

Products Tax Act, 1993 PA 327, MCL 205.422, and a cigar. Tobacco product does not include a vapor product, an alternative 

nicotine product, or a product regulated as a drug or device by the United States Food and Drug Administration under 

Subchapter V of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 USC 351 to 360FFF-7. 

 

“Vapor product” means a noncombustible product containing nicotine that employs a heating element, power source, electronic 

circuit, or other electronic, chemical, or mechanical means, regardless of shape or size, that can be used to produce vapor from 

nicotine in a solution or other form. Vapor product includes an electronic cigarette, electronic cigar, electronic cigarillo, 

electronic pipe, or similar product or device and a vapor cartridge or other container of nicotine in a solution or other form that 

is intended to be used with or in an electronic cigarette, electronic cigar, electronic cigarillo, electronic pipe, or similar product 

or device. Vapor product does not include a product regulated as a drug or device by the United States Food and Drug 

Administration under Subchapter V of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 USC 351 to 360FFF-7. 

 
Section II – TOBACCO PRODUCTS, ALTERNATIVE NICOTINE PRODUCTS, AND VAPOR 
PRODUCTS 

 
(a) A person or retailer shall not sell, give, or furnish, nor authorize or allow others to sell, give, or furnish any tobacco 

product, alternative nicotine product, or vapor product to a person under eighteen (18) years of age, including, but not 

limited to, through a vending machine. 

 

(b) A retailer who sells tobacco, alternative nicotine, or vapor products at retail shall post, in a place close to the point of sale 

and conspicuous to both employees and customers, a sign produced by the department of public health that includes the 

following statement:  

 
"The purchase of tobacco, nicotine, or vapor products by a minor under eighteen (18) years of age and the sale of tobacco 

products to a minor are prohibited by law. A minor unlawfully purchasing or using tobacco, or nicotine, or vapor products 

is subject to criminal penalties.” 

 
(c) If the sign required under subsection (b) is more than six (6) feet from the point of sale, it shall be five and one-half (5½) 

inches by eight and one-half (8½) inches, and the statement required under subsection (b) shall be printed in thirty-six-

point boldface 2 type. If the sign required under subsection (b) is six (6) feet or less from the point of sale, it shall be two 
81



Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion  

(2) inches by four (4) inches, and the statement required under subsection (b) shall be printed in twenty-point boldface 

type. 

 

A sign distributed by the Michigan Department of Public Health pursuant to 1988 PA 314, as amended, MCL 722.641, et 

seq.; MSA 25.281, et seq., shall be deemed to comply with this section. 

 

(d) A retailer shall not display for sale in Orion Township a vapor product unless the vapor product is stored for sale behind a 

counter in an area accessible only to employees or within a locked case so that a customer wanting access to the vapor 

product must ask an employee for assistance. 

 

(e) Penalties for violation of this section are specified in Sec. VII. 

 

Section III – LIQUID NICOTINE CONTAINERS 
 

 (a) A person shall not sell in this state a liquid nicotine container unless the liquid nicotine container meets the child-resistant 

effectiveness standards of 16 CFR 1700.15(b).  

 

(b) A person who violates Sec. III(a) shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not more than $50.00 for each 

violation. 

 

Section IV – USE OR POSSESSION OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS BY MINOR IN PUBLIC 
 

A person under eighteen (18) years of age shall not possess, attempt to possess, or smoke any tobacco product, alternative 

nicotine product, or vapor product on a public highway, street, alley, park or other lands used for public purposes, or in a public 

place of business or amusement. A minor shall not use a false ID to possess or attempt to possess any tobacco product, 

alternative nicotine product, or vapor product. Penalties for violation of this section are prescribed in Sec. VII.  

 
Section V –INTERFERENCE WITH RIGHTS OF PARENT OR GUARDIAN 

 
This division does not interfere with the right of a parent or legal guardian in the rearing and management of his or her minor 

children or wards within the bounds of his or her own private premises. 

 
 

SECTION VII – VIOLATION AND PENALTIES 
 
(a) A person who violates Section II(a), (b), (c), or (d) of this Ordinance is guilty of a misdemeanor.  

 

 

(b) A person who violates Sec. IV is responsible for a municipal civil infraction or a misdemeanor, depending upon the number 

of violations. The following penalties shall apply in the event of a determination of responsibility for an a infraction under 

this section: 

 

(1) For the first violation, the individual is responsible for a state civil infraction and shall be fined not more than $50.00. 

The court may order the individual to participate in a health promotion and risk reduction assessment program, if available. 

In addition, the court may order the individual to perform not more than 16 hours of community service.  

 

(2) For the second violation, the individual is responsible for a state civil infraction and shall be fined not more than $50.00. 

The court may order the individual to participate in a health promotion and risk reduction assessment program, if available. 

In addition, the court may order the individual to perform not more than 32 hours of community service. 

 

(3) If a violation of subsection (3) occurs after 2 or more prior judgments, the individual is guilty of a misdemeanor    

punishable by a fine of not more than $50.00 for each violation. Pursuant to a probation order, the court may also require 

the individual to participate in a health promotion and risk reduction assessment program, if available 

 

 

Section VIII – SEVERABILITY 
 

The various parts, sections and clauses of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. If any part, sentence, paragraph, 

section or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the 

Ordinance shall not be affected 

 
82



Ordinances of the Charter Township of Orion  

Section IX – SAVINGS 
 

All proceedings pending and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired, or incurred at the time this Ordinance takes effect, 

are saved and may be consummated according to the law when they were commenced. 

 

Section X – REPEALER 
 
All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this 

Ordinance full force and effect.   
 

Section XI– EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

This Ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the Township of Orion, and shall become 

effective upon publication, as provided by law. 

83



    

V3.12-10-19 

Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Chris Barnett, Supervisor 
Board of Trustee’s 
 

From: Robert Duke, EFO 
Fire Chief 
 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 10, 2020 

Subject: Fire Department Petty Cash Account 

 
 
REQUEST: The Fire Department is requesting the approval to establish a petty cash account in the amount 
of $200  
 
REASON:  A petty cash account is a sum of money set-aside for minor cash disbursements for which the 
issuance of a formal voucher/check would be impractical.  

 
PROCESS: Incidental expenses allowed through petty cash include but are not limited to: registered mail, 
postage, emergency supplies, supplies not available through a vendor, vehicle licensing, and any one-time 
purchases that have to be handled on a cash basis. 
 

BUDGET 

If yes, fill out information below: 
 
 Financial Item? ☒  Project/Grant Tracking? ☐ 

Expected Invoice Date: Click or tap to enter a date.  Reviewed by Budget Director? ☒ 

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion) 
 

To authorize the Fire Department to establish a petty cash account that follows the Township imprest petty cash 
policy and Fire Department petty cash account SOG. 
 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

Fund Name Account No. Description 
Budget 
Amount Cost 

Remaining 
Budget 

Petty Cash Account  Petty Cash $200 $200  

84



 
 

DATE ISSUED: 1/1/2020          SECTION: 10-8 PETTY CASH ACCOUNT  

 

 Section 1. Purpose:  

The Petty Cash Account is a sum of money set-aside for minor cash disbursements for which the 

issuance of a formal voucher would be impractical.  

Incidental expenses allowed through petty cash include but are not limited to: registered mail, postage, 

emergency supplies, supplies not available through a vendor and any one-time purchases that have to be 

handled on a cash basis.  

These expenditures do not include meals, parking, gas, car washes, recreational programs, or any other 

expense that should be requested on an expense report or check request. 

Section 2. Policy:  

1. The amount to be included in the Orion Township Fire Department’s petty cash account shall be 

$200.  

2. The amount to be disbursed from the petty cash accounts for any purpose shall not exceed $25.  

3. All subsequent increases or decreases in the Fire Department’s established dollar amount for the petty 

cash account shall be authorized by the Township Supervisor, Clerk, and Treasurer.  

4. A custodian shall be appointed for the petty cash account by the Fire Chief.  

6. The petty cash will be kept in a locked safe place.  

7. The replenishment should be subject to the same review and approval as invoices.  

8. The petty cash account shall always be replenished at the end of the fiscal year (December 31) so that 

expenditures will be reflected in the proper accounting period.  

9. The replenishment must be by voucher with the appropriate receipts attached. The receipts should 

show the date, recipient, purpose, and amount of each cash disbursement.  

10. At the time of replenishment, the custodian should ensure that the balance remaining in petty cash, 

together with the amount of the replenishment voucher, equals the total authorized for the petty cash 

account.  

11. The petty cash accounts may not be used for personal cash advances.  

12. The petty cash accounts may not be used to cash checks.  

Section 3. Procedures for Processing Petty Cash:  

1. The petty cash custodian will log in the petty cash fund journal each petty cash slip issued, reflecting 

the slip number, individual's name, and department.  

2. Upon receiving a completed petty cash slip, the custodian will verify the dollar amount of the receipt 

against the requested amount of cash and record the amount in the journal. The receipt should be 

attached to the completed petty cash slip and kept in the petty cash fund until time of reimbursement.  
85



 
 

3. The petty cash account will be balanced at the end of each day that there is activity. The custodian 

will sign and date the tape detailing the petty cash slips, cash and outstanding petty cash slips, and 

place in the petty cash box.  

4. The petty cash account will be replenished on an as needed basis, but will be restored to its original 

amount at least quarterly. The replacement process is subject to the same review and approval as 

other claims.  

5. The petty cash accounts will be kept locked and in a secured place  

 

86



    Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 

www.oriontownship.org 
Phone: (248) 391-0304 

  

Agenda Item Summary 
 

To: Township Board 

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor 

Meeting Date: February 18, 2020 

Memo Date: February 13, 2020 

Subject: Schedule Joint Meeting 

 Pending X Consent 

I am requesting that we convene the Township Board, Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals, 
Corridor Improvement Authority, and our consultants for a joint meeting. 
 
A Doodle Poll was emailed to all of you on 2-13-2020. 

 

 

 

 

 
REQUEST: 

REASON: 

 
PROCESS: 

 
 
BUDGET:  Financial Item?    Yes X No If yes, fill out information below: 

Fund Name Account No. Description Budget Amount Cost Remaining Budget 
      

 
RECOMMENDATION (Motion): 

Schedule a joint Township Board, Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals, Corridor Improvement 
Authority, and consultants for a meeting based on the poll results in the Township Hall Board Room, and 
authorize the Clerk to post as an open meeting. 

87



 

 

Oakland County Sheriff’s Office 

Orion Township Substation 

Weekly “Calls for Service” Summary: 

Time period:  1-27-2020 to 2-02-2020 

  Calls for service -  407  

  Felony Arrests -   1  

  Misdemeanor Arrests -     2 

  Accidents -    17   

200018662              01/27/2020              9:41AM            Missing -Stolen Auto Report 
 
Deputies were dispatched to the 3000 block of Maple wood Ct for a stolen auto report.  
When deputies arrived, they contacted the victim, an Orion Twp. resident who stated that a 
known friend would stay with him on occasion and now believes this person stole his 
vehicle.   When the victim went into the garage to get his vehicle, he noticed that the vehicle 
was gone, along with both sets of keys.  The victim hasn’t heard from the 46-year-old West 
Bloomfield Twp. resident suspect since Saturday.  There was no forced entry into the 
garage.   Deputies checked the area for the vehicle with negative results.  Vehicle was 
entered into LEIN as stolen.  Vehicle is a 2006 Buick Lacrosse silver in color plate 
#DAL5186. All information, and evidence was collected and turned over to the Oakland 
County Sheriff’s Office Auto Theft Unit. 
 
200018892              01/27/2020             3:40PM     Medical Emergency Response 
 
Deputies were dispatched to 100 block of Starling Hill for a 31-year-old resident of Orion 
Twp having a heart attack. Deputies were advised upon call back there was no answer, due 
to the life threating exigent nature of the call, Deputies forced the door and entered the 
residence. Deputies checked the residence and discovered the patient/ homeowner was 
not in the home.  Deputies were advised by dispatch that the patient already self-initiated 
transport to the hospital herself.  The home was secured, and the family notified of the 
efforts to protect life. 
 
 
 

88



200018930               01/27/2020             4:21PM       Trespassing warning 
 
Deputies were dispatched to the 1000 block of Lapeer Rd, for a customer trouble.  When 
deputies arrived, they made the scene safe and spoke with the manager who explained that 
the 48-year-old resident of Oxford, was no longer a welcome due to non-compliance. When 
he was told this by staff, he began making threats toward them. Deputies issued a written 
warning to the ex-patient and advised him not to return.    
 
200020014         01/28/2020           10:24PM      Bomb Threat Lake Orion High School – 
OCSO K-9 Unit Assist             
    
Deputies were dispatched to the 400 Block of Scripps Rd Lake Orion High School for a 
possible bomb threat.  Dispatched received a call Crime Stoppers and advised that they 
received an anonymous tip stating the saw on SNAP Chat that there was a device in the 
back of the school near the pool lobby in the locker rooms.  No addition information 
provided.   Deputies arrived and checked the pool area and did not find any packages.  The 
area was secured and OCSO K-9 was called to conduct a thorough and extensive search of 
the school. K-9 deputies arrived and conducted a K-9 explosive search of the entire school 
nothing was found.  Deputies checked the perimeter of the school and found nothing.     
Suspects unknown.  All information was gathered and turned over to the detective bureau, 
investigation continues. Update – The responsible juvenile was identified, and the case will 
be turned over the Probate Court.  
 
 
 
200021489            01/30/2020     4:56pm              Larceny of property 
 
Deputies were dispatched to the Orion Twp. Substation to speak with an individual 
regarding larceny of personal property.  Deputies met with the victim who advised that 
while she was at work she went into the cafeteria and placed her jacket on her chair and 
left for approximately 15 minutes and then returned.  When she was on her way home, she 
noticed that her wallet was missing out of her jacket pocket.  The victim checked with 
security and was told there were no camera’s in the cafeteria. Wallet contained $50.00 
cash, and various credit cards and Identification.  All information, and evidence was 
collected and turned over to the detective bureau, investigation continues. 
 
200022605            02/1/2020     7:11am              Larceny from Grounds / Auto 

 
Deputies were dispatched to 4883 Bald Mountain Road (Ajax Paving) for multiple trailers 
and storage containers that were broken into.  Deputies located burglary tools near the 
crime scene and placed them into property to be fingerprinted.  Several vehicles and 
container had been broken into. It is unknown at this time the value or amount stolen.  
Employees will be conducting and audit and providing security footage to Detectives.  The 
investigation continues. 
 

89



200022727            02/1/2020     11:21am              Death Investigation 
 
Deputies were dispatched to the 2200 block of Forest Hills Dr for a deceased person found 
unresponsive in the morning by a family member.   Upon arrival it was obvious that the 
female was deceased.  The 52-year-old female was last seen alive the previous day by the 
husband.  The wife had a medical condition and was on numerous prescriptions.  Many 
empty pill bottles were discovered next to the deceased along with a note.  There were no 
signs of foul play or trauma to the body.  Paramedics provided telemetry to McLaren 
Oakland for time of death.  A detective was called in and responded to the scene.  The 
Medical Examiner responded and took custody of the deceased and an autopsy has been 
scheduled.  
 

 
 
20-22555     02/01/2020     3:18 am     Traffic Stop - Possession of Methamphetamine 
- Arrest 

 
A Deputy on routine patrol observed a Ford minivan travelling 50 mph in a 40-mph zone 
on Waldon Rd near Joslyn. The vehicle had also failed to dim his high beam headlights. A 
check of the licensed plate revealed the registration was suspended on 09/06/2019 from 
California.  The driver, a 59-year-old resident of Orion did not have a valid driver’s license 
on his person.  He was placed under arrest and seated in the back seat of the patrol car. 
While in the patrol car, the subject attempted to hide a white powdery substance between 
the seat.  Deputies field tested the substance and found it to be methamphetamine. The 
driver was arrested and booked at the Oakland County Jail. He was released pending 
completion of the controlled substance test results. The vehicle was impounded 
 
20-23423            02/2/2020     2:20 pm              Domestic Violence / Resisting and  
Obstructing a Deputy- Arrest 

 
Deputies responded to the 2900 block of Rockford Court for a Domestic Violence call. The 
victim, a 68-year-old resident of Orion, had called 911 to report her boyfriend was holding 
her down and pinning her on the bed. The suspect refused to let her go.  Upon arrival of 
Deputies, a disturbance could be heard from inside the residence. Deputies entered and 
found the suspect actively assaulting the victim.  Deputies ordered the suspect to stop and 
he refused.  Deputies had to physically stop the suspect from active assault on the victim.  
The victim was found to have no injuries and refused medical attention.  The suspect was 
arrested and transported to the hospital for detox (.408bac), where he remains in custody.  
A warrant for Domestic Violence and Resisting and Obstruction a Deputy was sent to the 
Prosecutors Office for review.  
 

Anyone with information or crime tips regarding these incidents are encouraged to 
contact the Orion Township Sheriff’s Office Substation at 248 393-0090 for tips, or 
our Dispatch Center at 248 858-4911 for incidents in-progress. Tipsters can remain 
anonymous 

90



 

 

Oakland County Sheriff’s Office 

Orion Township Substation 

Weekly “Calls for Service” Summary: 

Time period:  2-03-2020 to 2-09-2020 

  Calls for service -  354  

  Felony Arrests -   0  

  Misdemeanor Arrests -      5 

  Accidents -    21 

200023897          02/03/2020         7:51AM          Malicious Damage to a Vehicle 
 
Deputies were dispatched to the 1000 block of Ridgeview Cir for an MDOP to vehicle 
report.  A 47- year-old Orion Twp. resident reported that she discovered her vehicle had 
been damaged.  Responding Deputies observed both rear tires were flat and appeared to 
have been cut and damaged intentionally.   A search of the area for further evidence and/or 
suspects met with negative results.  All evidence and photographs were collected and 
turned over to the detective bureau. It is believed the damage was intentional and suspects 
are unknown at this time. 
 
200025527          02/05/2020          11:19AM              Harassment – Threats 
 
Deputies were dispatched to the Orion Twp. Substation to speak with a subject reference a 
Harassment report.  Deputies met with a 24-year-old Lake Orion resident who advised that 
on 2/1/2020 she received a call / voice mail from a subject making threats towards her.  
Victim stated that the voice was changed by voice changing software.  The victim said that 
after the voice changing software was removed, she recognized the voice as someone she 
knows.   A copy of the voice mail was preserved and turned over to the detective bureau.  
Investigation continues. 
 
200026041          02/06/2020            1:25AM              Suspicious Circumstances – 
Persons & Vehicle 
 
Deputies were dispatched to the 3000 block of Aspen for 2 suspicious males walking 
through the parking lots.  When deputies arrived, there were advised by witnesses that the 

91



two subjects took off running into the woods behind a dumpster.  Deputies checked the 
area and noticed that the suspects walked up to vehicles in the parking lot prior to running 
into the woods.  Deputies discovered a vehicle the two suspicious persons left behind when 
they ran away. The vehicle did not belong on the private property and Deputies secured the 
vehicle pending contact with the registered owner.    All information, and evidence was 
collected and turned over to the detective bureau. Neighbors were commended for keeping 
a watchful eye on their neighborhood.  
 

 Be aware of your surroundings at all times and report to police suspicious persons, 
vehicles and circumstances immediately. Do not hesitate to call the police at #248 
858-4911 or 911. 

 Do not leave valuables in plain view inside vehicles.  

 Make it a Rule: Lock your vehicle at all times, regardless of the location or 
circumstances.  

 

 
 
20-27047 2/7/2020  11:10 AM  Retail Fraud III 
 
Deputies responded to 4872 Baldwin Rd, Kohl’s, for a retail fraud.  Loss prevention was 
alerted to a suspicious man that appeared to be looking at the security cameras.  The 
suspect appeared to be trying to find clothing without a theft sensor device attached to 
them.  The suspect removed a gray Nike zippered hooded sweatshirt, a gray Nike 
sweatpants and a blue Under Armor hooded sweatshirt from the rack and put them into a 
black backpack.  The suspect walked towards the front of the store, passing all points of 
purchase and exited the store without paying for the concealed merchandise.  Loss 
prevention stopped the suspect outside the store and the suspect handed over the stolen 
merchandise.  Deputies identified the suspect as a 45 year old Lake Orion resident.  The 
suspect was cited for Retail Fraud III and released at the scene.  
 

Anyone with information or crime tips regarding these incidents are encouraged to 
contact the Orion Township Sheriff’s Office Substation at 248 393-0090 for tips, or 
our Dispatch Center at 248 858-4911 for incidents in-progress. Tipsters can remain 
anonymous 
 

92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252


	Agenda
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE
	3. RECOGNITION
	3.A. Firefighter of the Year
	3.B. Citizen of the Month

	4. APPROVAL OF BILLS
	Board Bill Cover Sheet

	5. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
	6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	7. CONSENT AGENDA
	7.A. Minutes - Regular Meeting, February 3, 2020
	Minutes, BOT February 3, 2020

	7.B. Tuition Reimbursement Request
	02182020 Patrick Ross tuition reimbursement request memo
	02182020 Patrick Ross tuition reimbursement request attachment.docx

	7.C. Schedule Board Workshop March 2, 2020 6:00 PM (Location Fire Station 3)
	02182020 schedule board workshop memo

	7.D. Lease Vehicle - Building Department
	Lease Inspector Vehicle
	lease vehicle BP
	DOC021320-02132020114811

	7.E. Purchase Two Vehicles - Public Service Department
	DPS vehicle purchase
	Orion Twp 2020 TK30903
	Orion Twp 2020 TK31003 Crane
	DPS vehicle purchase-update

	7.F. Purchase CAT Brush Hog- Parks & Recreation
	02182020 cat brush hog (003)
	Orion Township Attachments (Revised)

	7.G. Polly Ann Trail Interlocal and By-Law Revisions
	PATMC Interlocal and bylaw agenda summary
	POLLY ANN TRAIL - BYLAWS CURRENT AT APRIL 17, 2019
	POLLY ANN TRAIL - BYLAWS AMENDED CLEAN COPY APPROVED 1-15-20
	POLLY ANN TRAIL - INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT AMENDMENTS for APRIL 17, 2019 MTG
	POLLY ANN TRAIL - INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT AMENDED CLEAN COPY APPROVED 1-15-20
	POLLY ANN TRAIL - FUNDING FORMULA 2020 - 2022
	POLLY ANN TRAIL - APPENDIX A
	POLLY ANN TRAIL - 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENTS @ 1-15-20

	7.H. Interlocal Sewer Agreement
	final sanitary sewer letter agreement

	7.I. East Clarkston Pathway Inspection Services
	G2 E Clarkston Pathway Testing
	DOC239

	7.J. Solicitation Request-  VFW Post 334 – Buddy Poppy Fundraiser
	021220 Agenda item summary VFW post 334 buddy poppy
	vfw

	7.K. Set Election Inspector Pay
	021820 Agenda Item Summary set election inspector pay

	7.L. ADDED Solicitation Request - Clean Water Action
	Agenda Item Summary Notice of Solicitation Clean Water Action
	Orion Township Letter
	non profit verification form
	Canvass Verification
	IRS documentation
	ELAN revised crew list


	8. PENDING
	8.A. Second Reading - Update Tobacco, Alternative Nicotine Products, and Vapor Products Ordinance
	021820 Agenda Item Summary second reading tobacco
	Vaping Ord (002)

	8.B. Petty Cash Account - Fire Department
	Petty Cash Board Agenda Statement
	Petty Cash12_16_19 (002)

	8.C. Schedule Joint Meeting
	02182020 schedule joint meeting memo


	9. REPORTS
	9.A. Police/Fire Reports
	ORION WEEKLY- 1-27-2020 to 2-02-2020
	ORION WEEKLY- 2-03-2020 to 2-09-2020

	9.B. SCS Economic Development Activities in 2019
	9.C. Preliminary Financials for December and January
	cash summary 12-31-19
	cash summary 1-31-20
	revenue.expenditure report 123119 prelim
	revenue.expenditure report 13120 prelim
	balance sheet 123119 prelim
	balance sheet 13120 prelim


	10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT
	11. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION - DISCUSS ATTORNEY OPINION AND PENDING LITIGATION
	12. ADJOURNMENT

